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Financial and Operational Highlights

MEREERE
For the year ended 31 March
BEZ3A3MBLEE
% change
increase/
(decrease)
#hn, GR)
2015 2014 % 2 B
Revenue (HK$’million) Wz (B &E%5T) 1,091 1,299 (16.0%)
Gross profit (HK$’million) EFR(FEET) 617 682 (9.6%)
Operating loss (HK$’million) KEEBE(FEET) (85) (216) (60.4%)
Per share =14
Basic loss per share (HK cents)  SRXEZAREREGE) (14.02) (36.54) (61.6%)
Diluted loss per share (HK cents) #EHE R (&) (14.02) (36.54) (61.6%)
Net asset value per share (HK$) EIREEFE(ET) 0.59 0.73 (19.2%)
Share price IR B
— High (HK$) — &0&T) 0.76 0.69 10.1%
— Low (HK$) — ECET) 0.34 0.31 9.7%
Financial ratios B 75 b =
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE (%) 56.6% 52.5% 4.1 pt
Average inventory turnover (days) Pz SEEH(F) 217 226 (4.0%)
Average trade receivables turnover 5 i Ut iR 3E 2 £
(days) (H) 39 38 2.6%
Average trade payables turnover 5[ (<8R Z R & HA
(days) (H) 88 86 2.3%
Gearing ratio (%) BEABLE(%)
— Borrowing to total assets — [EEHHBEAE 4.6% 0.8% 3.8 pt
— Borrowing to net asset value = — fEEH&EFE 6.9% 1.2% 5.7 pt
Return on total assets (%) REEDR (%) (15.8%) (34.0%) (18.2) pt
Return on shareholders’ fund (%) BXERE S EITR(%) (23.9%) (50.0%) (26.1) pt
As at 31 March
M3A31H
% change
decrease
>
2015 2014 % 2B
Shareholders’ funds (HK$’000) BRES(FE7T) 365,174 455,381 (19.8%)
Total assets (HK$’000) WEE(FET) 552,015 670,014 (17.6%)
Number of shares in issue ('000) BTN E B (TA) 623,560 623,560 —

Walker Group Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR D

The board of directors (“Board” and “Directors” respectively)
of Walker Group Holdings Limited (“Company”) presents the
audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015 (“Year”).

GROUP’S BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development and retailing
of a diversified range of footwear products under its own brands,
namely, ACUPUNCTURE, ARTEMIS, COUBER.G, FORLERIA,
OXOX, TRU-NARI and WALACI, through its self-managed retail
shops (“Self-managed Shops”), concession points in department
stores (“Concession Points”) and franchised stores (“Franchised
Stores”). The Group possesses an extensive sales network across
the regions of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), Hong Kong
and Taiwan.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group operated a total of 45 Self-
managed Shops (3 in the PRC and 42 in Hong Kong), 640
Concession Points (622 in the PRC, 4 in Hong Kong and 14 in
Taiwan) and 136 Franchised Stores in the PRC. During the Year,
the Group had a net addition of 5 Self-managed Shops and a net
decrease of 157 Concession Points and 22 Franchised Stores.

BESEERERAR(EAQXADEFES (D5

ﬁf%%ﬁJ&F§$J)é¢HE‘D$ CIPSEG
NE(FEIAEE ) B ZE2015F3 A31 A ILF

E(RFEDZEEZGAFRE -
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AEBRFEEXEBAEREEEZTEE(AE
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MR2015F3A31H AEBEKLESL45HBHE
JERRIN AP B KR 42BM A ES) - 640 4
SHE B (622 NI AR E « 4 N EB K& 14
REE) X136 MM N B 2 SR EIEH - RA
FE - AEEZEEEFIE5MH BHEEL
B TR D RIF R 1567 B 22/  TxX 273

The following table summarizes the number and distribution of REtat - R2015F3 A3 B EE D 2B E
Self-managed Shops, Concession Points and Franchised Stores B BHEERMETREEH(REIEEY])
(collectively, “Retail Points”) in terms of geographical regions as ZEB RO MEEF 2 o
at 31 March 2015 as compared to last year.
As at 31 March R3H31H
2015 2014
Self- Self-
managed Concession  Franchised managed ~ Concession  Franchised
Shops Points Stores Total Shops Points Stores Total
Region HE BEE  BHHER BNCEES @t BE FITHEYR RITEEES o
The PRC HE
Beijing IR 2 113 - 115 2 138 - 140
Eastern China R - 131 10 141 - 156 15 17
Southern China #f 1 81 - 82 1 9% 1 98
Western China Ef - 92 9 101 - 123 12 135
Central China £ - 94 70 164 - 127 73 200
Northern China =i - 111 47 158 - 138 57 195
Sub-total g 3 622 136 761 3 778 158 939
Hong Kong BE 42 4 - 46 37 3 - 40
Taiwan aE - 14 - 14 — 16 — 16
Total @5t 45 640 136 821 40 797 158 995
Annual Report 2014/2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Central China EH

Henan Province A&
Hubei Province i#iit &
Jiangxi Province ST &
Shandong Province LR %

Western China ZEfg

Chonggqing City EE™
Gansu Province H&E#&
Guizhou Province EM&
Qinghai Province &i8%&
Shaanxi Province BRFE &
Sichuan Province 4)I|4&
Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
Region B EWikBAE
| Yunnan Province EfF# )

Southern China &

Guangdong Province EBR &
Guangxi Province B &
Fujian Province 2%

Hong Kong &%

Northern China 4t

Hebei Province 5t &

Heilongjiang Province £85I

Inner Mongolia Autonomous
Region R BAE

Jilin Province S#&

Liaoning Province EE#&

Shanxi Province |17 &

Tianjin City X3&mH

Beijing 1t X

Eastern China #&

Anhui Province Z##&
Jiangsu Province ST# &
Shanghai City L&
Zhejiang Province #1514

Taiwan & &

MARKET REVIEW

In the past year, global markets showed little sign of recovery and
the overall economy did not gain much momentum. In addition, the
Chinese government’s anti-graft policy, the continuous tightening
of spending across business and public sectors, together with the
influence of the anti-PRC tourists incident in Hong Kong, all had
contributed to the unfavorable market conditions, with retail being
the hardest hit industry. Keen competition and increasing operating
costs and rents also continued to have a negative impact on the
Group’s performance.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the Year, the Group recorded a decrease of 16% in its
consolidated revenue to approximately HK$1,091 million
(2014: HK$1,299 million). Revenue from the PRC, Hong Kong
and Taiwan markets decreased by 17.6%, 7.9% and 26.7%
respectively. The overall same store sales of the Group dropped
by approximately 9.4% and the overall gross profit margin of the
Group increased by 4.1 percentage points to 56.6%. The Group’s
overall operating expenses as a percentage of turnover decreased
by 4%. Loss attributable to the equity holders was approximately
HK$87 million (2014: HK$228 million). Loss per share amounted
to approximately 14.02 HK cents. The Board has recommended
not to declare dividends for the Year (2014: Nil).

Walker Group Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR D

The three geographical market segments, namely the PRC, Hong
Kong and Taiwan accounted for 79%, 20% and 1% of the Group’s
total revenue respectively (2014: 81%, 18% and 1%).

Various measures on inventory management were taken during
the Year in order to clear stocks and maintain an appropriate
inventory level. As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s inventory
balance (net) was HK$242 million, down 24.3% from HK$320
million as at 31 March 2014.

The PRC

During the Year, the revenue generated in the PRC was
approximately HK$864 million (2014: HK$1,049 million),
representing a decrease of 17.6% as compared to previous year.
The operation in PRC incurred a loss of HK$3 million for the Year
(2014: HK$43 million).

Same store sales dropped by approximately 10.4% and operating
deficit to revenue ratio decreased by 3.7 percentage points as
compared to last year.

Hong Kong

During the Year, the revenue generated in Hong Kong
was approximately HK$213 million (2014: HK$232 million),
representing a decrease of 7.9% as compared to previous year.
The operating loss in Hong Kong decreased by HK$16 million,
representing a 59.4% decrease as compared to last year. Same
store sales dropped by approximately 4.5% while operating deficit
to revenue ratio decreased by 6.3 percentage points as compared
to last year.

Taiwan

During the Year, the revenue generated in Taiwan was
approximately HK$14 million (2014: HK$19 million), representing
a decrease of 26.7% as compared to previous year. The operating
loss in Taiwan decreased by HK$3 million, representing a 91.1%
decrease as compared to last year. Same store sales dropped
by approximately 9.1% and operating deficit to revenue ratio
decreased by 14.1 percentage points to 2% as compared to last
year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR D

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Position

The Group maintained a stable financial position throughout
the Year. It financed its operations with internal funding and
bank borrowings. During the Year, the Group disposed of three
properties located in Kowloon Bay.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
amounting to HK$95 million (2014: HK$107 million) and
outstanding bank borrowings bearing a fixed interest rate of HK$5
million (2014: HK$5 million) and a floating interest rate of HK$20
million (2014: Nil) with a maturity of less than one year, which
led to a net cash position of HK$70 million. The bank loans were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and New Taiwan dollars. As
at 31 March 2015, the current ratio stood at 2.8 times (2014: 2.9
times) and the gearing ratio stood at 4.6% (2014: 0.8%). °

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had aggregate banking facilities
of approximately HK$179 million for overdrafts, bank loans for
trade financing and bank guarantees for rental deposit (2014:
HK$225 million) of which HK$34 million was used for trade
financing and bank guarantees for rental deposit as at 31 March
2015 (2014: HK$43 million). As at 31 March 2015, the Group had
a charge on its assets to secure its banking facilities.

During the Year, inventory turnover days decreased to
approximately 217 days (2014: 226 days). As at 31 March 2015,
inventory amounted to approximately HK$242 million (2014:
HK$320 million).

Capital Expenditure

During the Year, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to
HK$18 million (2014: HK$22 million), comprising principally the
purchase of leasehold improvements, computer equipment and
computer software.

The Group believes that its current cash holding, cash flow from
operations and available banking facilities will be sufficient to fulfil
its working capital requirements and its financial position remains
sound for continuous operation and expansion.

Foreign Exchange Management

The Group operates principally in the PRC and Hong Kong and
its transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi or Hong
Kong dollars. The Group does not expect any significant foreign
currency risk and did not enter into any forward contract to hedge
its foreign exchange risk during the Year.

Walker Group Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR D

Significant Acquisitions and Disposals

The Group had no significant investment or acquisition or disposal
of subsidiaries or associated companies during the Year.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2015, the Group pledged some of its land and
building and assets held for sale to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$24 million (2014: HK$27 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities or off-balance sheet obligations (2014: Nil).

Group Structure

During the Year, there was no material change in the corporate
structure of the Group.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had a total of 3,004 employees
(2014: 3,656 employees) and the total staff cost for the Year was
HK$237 million (2014: HK$273 million), representing 21.7% of the
Group’s total revenue. The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages to its employees, including mandatory retirement funds,
insurance, medical coverage and purchase discounts. In addition,
incentive share options and performance-based discretionary
bonus on an annual basis may be granted to employees subject to
the Group’s and individual performance. The Group also provides
regular trainings and workshops to its frontline and back office
staff on sales techniques, product knowledge and team building.

OUTLOOK

2014 was a difficult year for the retail sector. Looking ahead, as
China and the Asia Pacific region continue to suffer a sluggish
economy, whereas the Chinese government is tightening its
control on spending across business sectors, our retail business is
likely to face another challenging year.

As consumers now tend to do shopping at shopping malls, the
Group has reviewed its marketing strategies, and is planning to
open new shops with suitable locations in shopping malls in the
coming year. However, such a shift needs to be made with caution
so that the total number of shops can be maintained at a desirable
level.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR D

Franchise is a steady and efficient business to the Group,
hence the Group will continue to seek opportunities to add more
franchised stores with suitable locations in the PRC, targeting the
potential franchisees in third or fourth-tier cities. With a broader
base of franchise business, the Group can enhance its image and
penetrate further into the market.

E-commerce is the Group’s another focus of resource allocation.
With a strengthened e-commerce team, the Group looks forward
to boosting sales through electronic channels and developing its
020 (online to offline) business by collaborating with more well-
known e-commerce platforms, such as VIP.com.

In addition to its regular business, the Group will continue to
put efforts in providing a broader range of products and look for
suitable shop locations in shopping malls. Despite the encouraging
result in stock clearance leading to more healthy inventory level
in current year, the Group will continue to establish clearance
channels, such as factory outlets and electronic platforms, so that
funds generated will be better used in operations.

Despite the challenging environment, the Group will strive to
maintain a stable financial position, expand its sales network,
control operating costs and enhance operational efficiency.
Barring unforeseeable circumstances, the Group will work hard to
overcome difficulties and improve its results to create better value
for shareholders in the long term.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders,
customers and suppliers for their long-standing support and
recognition. | would also like to express my appreciation to the
management team and the staff for their dedicated contribution
and unwavering commitment to delivering the best services during
the Year. With all of us working together, | look forward to a better
performance for the rest of the year and beyond.

Walker Group Holdings Limited
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Corporate Governance Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to establishing and maintaining good
corporate governance practices within the Group to have better
transparency and protection of shareholders’ interest in general.
We believe that a well-balanced corporate governance structure
will definitely enable better management of its business risks and
thereby ensure the Group is operated in the best interests of its
shareholders and other stakeholders. The diagram below depicts
the overall corporate governance structure of the Group.

Corporate Governance Structure Diagram
REREEE

Shareholders and
other Stakeholders
i 57 B3 E At F 2= AE A £

Company Secretary Board
NEME Exg

=

———————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

Remuneration Committee

HHZES

Nomination Committee

REZEE

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report”
(“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). These functions included:

— to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

— to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

— to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

— to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

— to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Currently, there are three board committees under the
Board, namely Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. All these committees perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference
which have been posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. These committees report directly to the Board
on their works and make recommendations on matter where
appropriate.

Throughout the Year, the Company had applied principles of
and had complied with all the code provisions set out in the CG
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for setting the Group’s directions,
strategies and policies, approval of annual budgets and business
plans, overseeing internal controls and formulating the corporate
governance policy. The Board reserves the right to decide all
policy matters and material transactions of the Group.

Currently, the Board comprises a total of six Directors, three
Executive Directors, namely Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung (Chairman),
Mr. KIU Wai Ming (Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. HUNG Tin
Chun, and three Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDS”),
namely Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael, Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP and
Mr. LEE Kwan Hung. The Board believes that the balance between
Executive Directors and INEDs is reasonable and adequate to
provide sufficient checks and balances that safeguard the interests
of shareholders and the Group. The INEDs provide the Group with
diversified expertise and experience. Their views and participation
bring independent judgment and advice on issues relating to
the Group’s strategies, performance, conflicts of interests of all
shareholders are taken into account. The number of INEDs has
been no less than one-third of the number of the Board members
and at least one of whom possesses the appropriate professional
accounting qualification and related financial management
expertise as required under the Listing Rules.
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In accordance with the Company’s Article of Association
(“Articles”), the Board shall have the power from time to time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting (“AGM”) of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation and all Directors are
subject to retirement at least once every three years.

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”)
were separate and exercised by Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung and
Mr. KIU Wai Ming respectively. The Chairman is responsible for
providing leadership and ensuring effective running of the Board.
The CEO is responsible for the Group’s day-to-day operations
and implementation of the Group’s strategies and is assisted by
a management team, comprising Executive Directors, general
managers and department heads of the Group, with authority and
responsibility for developing and exercising both operational and
non-operational duties.

All INEDs are appointed for a specific term and are subject to
retirement by rotation. No INED has served the Company for more
than 9 years. Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered that all INEDs are independent.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the CEO. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable laws
are followed.
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The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The training records for the Year had
been provided to the Company Secretary by all Directors of the
Company. A summary of trainings received by the Directors for the
Year is shown as below:

ARRBEEREF2EBBERER  UER
RERBEEFZAMBNNE  BRESEHESSHEF
HABEREEZER - AR EREZCAAF
MERBAFEZEIICH AFEEFEXE
2 BHEIIRT

Type of training

Name of Directors EENF EIER
Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung (Chairman) PREEE 2 (£/E) A&B
Mr. KIU Wai Ming (CEO) BHER S (7T AR E) A&B
Mr. HUNG Tin Chun HRELE A&B
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael EBTEE A&B
Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP BIRHE L FHL A&B
Mr. LEE Kwan Hung THMERE A&B

Notes:
A: attending briefing sessions and/or seminars

B: reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements

Appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance has been
arranged for the Directors and officers of the Company for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage of directors’ and officers’ liability is reviewed
on an annual basis.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc
basis of at least four times a year to discuss the Group’s business
strategies as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s annual and
interim results. The Board members are served with notices of
at least 14 days and provided with all agendas and adequate
information for their review at least 3 days prior to the meetings.
After the Board meetings, draft minutes are circulated to all
Directors for comments before confirmation and sign-off. Minutes
of Board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept by
the Company Secretary and are available for inspection by any
Director at any reasonable time on reasonable notice. During the
year, six physical Board meetings were held.
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All Directors are adequately briefed on updates on amendments
to or latest developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws, rules and regulations concerning their obligations as
Directors and good corporate governance practices. They were
also provided with the Group’s monthly management updates
which give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, financial position and prospects to enable
the Board and each Director to discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely, Mr.
SZE Tsai Ping, Michael (Chairman), Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP and
Mr. LEE Kwan Hung, all being INEDs. No member of the Audit
Committee was a former partner of the Company’s existing
auditing firm. The Chairman of the Audit Committee possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications in accountancy and
experience in financial matters.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Group’s
financial reporting system and internal control procedures, to review
the Group’s financial information, to oversee relationship with the
Group’s external auditor and make relevant recommendations
to the Board. The Audit Committee held two meetings during
the Year and its works performed include reviewing the adopted
accounting principles and practices, the annual and interim
consolidated financial results and reports, reviewing external
auditor’s audit plan, terms of engagement and recommended
auditor’s fee for the Board’s approval, reviewing the management
letters and reports issued by the external auditor and reviewing
the internal audit review reports for assessing effectiveness of
internal control systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee was provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense, where necessary.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely,
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael (Chairman), Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP
and Mr. LEE Kwan Hung, all being INEDs.
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the size, structure and composition of the Board and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategies, to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and
make recommendations to the Board on selection of individuals
for directorships, to assess the independence of INEDs and
to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession plan for Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the CEO. The Nomination Committee
was provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and
may seek independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense, where necessary.

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in June 2013 which
set out the approach to diversity on the Board. The Board shall
consider various aspects in achieving diversity of Board members,
including but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race and gender. The Nomination Committee will
monitor the implementation of the board diversity policy and
review the policy as appropriate.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the Year
and its works performed include reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board; approving the appointment of an
Executive Director; and assessing independence of the INEDs.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises four members, namely,
Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP (Chairman), Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung, Mr.
SZE Tsai Ping, Michael and Mr. LEE Kwan Hung. The majority of
the members of the Remuneration Committee are INEDs.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of formal and transparent procedures
for developing remuneration policy, to review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives, to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of Executive Directors
and senior management, to make recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration of INEDs and to ensure that no Director or any
of his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee was provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense, where necessary.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year
and discussed the remuneration package for certain Directors and
senior management as well as other remuneration-related matters.
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DIRECTOR’S ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT MEETINGS

The attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting,
Audit Committee Meeting, Nomination Committee Meeting,
Remuneration Committee Meeting and general meeting during the
Year are set out below:

EENEB2HER
T%%&ﬁlJﬂiirﬁzi%ﬁAi%/\@ CEBRER
gRENR

E/E\;§ %E%K/\;\%ui

RARGZHFEE:

Attendance/Number of meetings held
for the year ended 31 March 2015

BZE2015F3R31 BLEE
HE/ BT EEYE
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting 2014 AGM
£V ZE8 REZEE FHzEe 20145
Ezeed ] E g% RRAEAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung (Chairman of the REERT(EFFLTE

Board and Member of the Remuneration REHNZEERS)

Committee) 6/6 = = 11 il
Mr. KIU Wai Ming (Chief Executive Officer) — BHFBX & (/TR #5) 6/6 - - - 1"
Mr. HUNG Tin Chun RRELE 4/4 - - — —
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTEE
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael (Chairman of the ~ $ BV (FRRES

Audit and Nomination Committees and ZE2TRE LR

Member of the Remuneration Committee) FHZEESHE) 5/6 2/2 12 17 17
Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP (Chairman of EREBLA AL

Remuneration Committee and Member of (HHZEEEE - &

the Audit and Nomination Committees) BRIEEZEERS) 6/6 2/2 2/2 17 17
Mr. LEE Kwan Hung (Member of the Audit TOREE(BE  fE5

Nomination and Remuneration Committees) — RFHZEEHS) 6/6 212 212 17 1N
DIRECTORS’ AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES ESRHBREETZESRS

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiries with all Directors, they have confirmed their compliance
with the Model Code throughout the Year. During the Year, the
Company adopted written guidelines on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code for relevant employees in respect of the
dealings in the Company’s securities.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor
subject to endorsement by the Board and final approval
and authorization by the shareholders of the Company in
general meetings. During the Year, the Group has engaged
PricewaterhouseCoopers as external auditor to perform the
following services and their respective fees charged are set out as
follows:

SMNEE X BUEM

EREESRAREZRINERYN S BT EHE
ARES HAREEFEZHERAATRE
RIREA S b B RIS - A -
B B E IR RS B AT RIS A
BMED - SR TR - SIERE . B AR
m -

Type of Services fRisEER 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Audit services ENZARTS 1,615 1,615
Non-audit services IETIZARTS 374 453
Total et 1,989 2,068

INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company has an independent internal audit team, which plays
a major role in providing objective assurance to the Board that
a sound internal control system is in place and operated by the
management. The head of the internal audit department directly
reports to the Audit Committee on audit matters. The annual audit
works plan covered the business activities and process of the
Group’s core operating business. Moreover, ad hoc reviews will
be performed on specific areas of concern identified by the Audit
Committee and the management from time to time.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility for the Group’s internal
control system, while the management ensures the sufficient and
effective operational controls over the key business process are
properly implemented with regular review and update.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. To maintain a
sound system of internal control and safeguard our shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets at all times, the Group has an
independent audit team to review and monitor all critical aspects
of the Group’s activities and its internal control. During the Year,
the Board had reviewed the findings of the internal control review
performed by the internal auditor and external auditor together with
the Audit Committee and, after discussion with the management
and external auditor, was satisfied that the Group’s internal
control system was sound and adequate for the Year. The Board
would continue to review and improve the Group’s internal control
system, taking into account the prevailing regulatory requirements,
business development needs and the interests of shareholders.

The Board also reviews annually the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the channels by which information is communicated
with its shareholders. The Company’s corporate communications
include among other things, announcements, financial reports,
circulars and other corporate communications which are
disseminated through its website at www.walkershop.com.hk
and the website of the Stock Exchange in compliance with the
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules.

The Company regards the AGM as a platform to provide an
important opportunity for direct communication between the
Board and the Company’s shareholders. All Directors will make
an effort to attend general meetings. The chairman of the
AGM proposes separate resolution for each issue and invites
presence of chairman of each of the Board Committees for
answering questions at the AGM. External auditor also attends
the AGM to answer questions about the conduct of audit, the
preparation and content of auditor’s report and the confirmation
of auditor’s independence. The notice of AGM and related papers
are distributed to shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the AGM. At the AGM, the Chairman ensures that detailed
procedures for conducting a poll are explained.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
shareholders of the Company holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionist(s) may convene such meeting,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there had been no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

Walker Group Holdings Limited
BEESETKRBER QA 20

IR R EF

RIEZRAMAESSF I Iz EREZ
xiﬁﬁhﬁ$mﬁ$ AFERA(BARAK

RAZBRRE LRER) D Z—ZARAK
R REAREAEREBANESTSHARMWEE
HEBER  EREFSARMEFHIAE - A
BREABERENRAZEMER - ﬁﬁKEM
BE2ERER2EARNET - MEFSREE
EKXEQtJZEW”ﬁ&ﬁQ'%EEE*
ALTABRRE MEEBRATEREEERE
BRAGMELZAA G IR ERARABRE
2ERATEREN -

RAFE  ARRZEEXMH L EEALE -

EERMBHRRZEM

SEERAEARIRBEATAERERZE:TE
APARR RN R B I 53Rk -



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEAEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung, aged 48, is the Chairman, Executive
Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Group. Ms. Chan is the sister-in-law of Mr. HUNG Tin Chun, who
is an Executive Director of the Group. Ms. Chan is also one of
the founders and is responsible for the overall management and
strategic development of the Group. She serves as a director
of all the principal subsidiaries of the Company and she is
also a director of Smart Presto Holdings Limited (a controlling
shareholder of the Company). Ms. Chan has over 20 years of
experience in the footwear retail industry.

Mr. KIU Wai Ming, aged 66, is the Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director of the Group. Mr. Kiu is also a director of
most of the principal subsidiaries of the Company. He holds a
Bachelor's Degree in Economics and Marketing from Louisiana
State University, the United States of America. Mr. Kiu currently
serves as an Independent Non-executive Director of Man Sang
International Limited as well as Hung Fook Tong Group Holdings
Limited, (both listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited). Mr. Kiu is also an Independent Non-executive
Director of CCB International (Holdings) Limited, an investment
bank wholly-owned by China Construction Bank Corporation. Mr.
Kiu has over 30 years of experience in the finance and banking
industry.

Mr. HUNG Tin Chun, aged 67, is an Executive Director of the
Group. Mr. Hung is the brother-in-law of Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung,
who is the Chairman and Executive Director of the Group. He is
also a director of all the principal subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Hung joined the Group in 2007 and is responsible for product
development, management, merchandising and quality control of
the Group. He is strong in product technology and manufacturing.
Mr. Hung has over 20 years of experience in the footwear retail
industry.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael, aged 70, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group. He also serves as the Chairman
of both the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
as well as a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Group. Mr. Sze holds a Master's Degree in Laws (LLM) from
the University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Mr. Sze has over 30 years of experience in the financial
and securities field. Mr. Sze currently serves as an Independent
Non-executive Director of Greentown China Holdings Limited
and Harbour Centre Development Limited (both listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). From
2000 to 2011, Mr. Sze was formerly a Non-executive Director of
Burwill Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). He served as a former member
of the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal. He was also
a former council member and a member of the Main Board
Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Mr. Sze was previously a director of Baron Global Financial
Services Limited and Ping An Securities Limited, as well as
an Independent Non-executive Director of GOME Electrical
Appliances Holding Limited (listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited).

Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP, aged 70, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Group. He also serves as the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee as well as a member of both the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Group. Dr. Fan
holds a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from the University of
Hong Kong, a Master’s Degree in Economics from the University
of Toronto, Canada and a Doctor’s Degree in Philosophy
(Economics) from the University of Wisconsin-Madison, the United
States of America. Dr. Fan is currently a council member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Dr. Fan retired as Executive
Director of Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications in July 2013.
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Mr. LEE Kwan Hung, aged 49, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Group. He also serves as a member of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee as well as the
Nomination Committee of the Group. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Laws and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the
University of Hong Kong in 1988 and 1989 respectively. He was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1991 and the United
Kingdom in 1997. Between 1993 and 1994, Mr. Lee was a Senior
Manager of the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He is currently a consultant of a law firm in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lee serves as an Independent Non-executive Director
of Asia Cassava Resources Holdings Limited, China BlueChemical
Ltd., Embry Holdings Limited, Futong Technology Development
Holdings Limited, Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd., NetDragon
Websoft Inc., Newton Resources Ltd, Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings
Company Limited and Red Star Macalline Group Corporation Ltd.
(all listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited). Mr. Lee was formerly an Independent Non-executive
Director of Far East Holdings International Limited and Yuexiu
REIT Asset Management Limited (both listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). He also formerly
served as an Independent Non-executive Director of New Universe
International Group Limited (listed on the GEM Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHENG Dong Xue, aged 48, is the general manager of
the China region of the Group and is responsible for planning,
executing and monitoring of operational strategies in the PRC. He
has over 20 years of experience in management.

Mr. Vichai PHAISALAKANI, (alias Mr. Andy HUNG), aged 67, is
the senior consultant of the Group and is responsible for financial
and accounting management, corporate governance affairs, legal
and compliance functions and information technology of the
Group. He has over 30 years of experience in auditing, financial
accounting, business advisory and management, 11 years of which
were with an international accounting firm. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Hung has held various senior management positions in
several listed and non-listed companies in Hong Kong.

Ms. CHONG Lai Chu, aged 47, is the financial controller and
company secretary of the Group. She joined the Group in 2006
and is responsible for financial and accounting function and
company secretarial matters of the Group. Ms. Chong holds a
Master Degree in Business Administration from the University
of Manchester. She is a certified public accountant and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
She has 5 years of auditing experience and over 17 years of
experience in the accounting and finance field.

Mr. LIU Cheng Ju, aged 47, is the general manager of the Taiwan
region of the Group and is responsible for planning, executing and
monitoring operational strategies in Taiwan. He has over 20 years
of experience in emporium and retail businesses in Taiwan.
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Report of Directors

ESEHREE

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are retailing of footwear in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Taiwan. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the Year.

An analysis to the Group’s performance for the Year by segment
is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s results for the Year and the state of the Company’s
and the Group’s affairs as at 31 March 2015 are set out on pages
37 to 110 of this annual report.

The Board has recommended not to declare final dividend for the
Year (2014: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 42 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2015, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution as calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2014:
Nil).

DONATIONS
During the Year, the Group did not make charitable contributions
and other donations (2014: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during
the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
and the laws of the Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 111 to 112 of this
annual report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital
and share options during the Year are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

GROUP’S BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s borrowings as at 31 March 2015 are set out
in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung (Chairman)
Mr. KIU Wai Ming (CEO)
Mr. HUNG Tin Chun ™"

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael
Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP
Mr. LEE Kwan Hung

Note 1: Mr. HUNG Tin Chun was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company with effect from 16 September 2014.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Articles, Ms. CHAN Mei
Sheung, an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. LEE
Kwan Hung, an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM”").

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Articles, Mr. HUNG
Tin Chun, who was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 16 September 2014, will hold office
until the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer himself for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.
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Disclosure of Information of Directors Pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of The Listing Rules

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in
information required to be disclosed in this report are as follows:

Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael, an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, resigned as a director of Ping An
Securities Limited on 1 December 2014. He also resigned as
an Independent Non-executive Director of GOME Electrical
Appliances Holding Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, on 24 June 2015.

Mr. LEE Kwan Hung, an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company, was appointed on 17 February 2015 as an
Independent Non-executive Director of Red Star Macalline Group
Corporation Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 26 June 2015.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 21 to 23 of this annual report.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their associates
in the shares (“Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and/or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors
and chief executive were taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be and
are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
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The Company Number of shares held
NG FrERn#E
Number of Approximate %
underlying of the
shares held Company’s
under equity total issued
derivatives share capita
Personal Family Corporate  BRERA{TE HARNAERT
Name of Director Class of shares interests interests interests ~ IEMEEZ Total RAREH
BEpg R &R AR FEER ARkE  BERGOEA act BHES
(Note 2)
(Hi#2)
Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung Ordinary shares/share options — 449,150,000 — 6,000,000 455,150,000 72.99%
REgLT Lak ke (Note 1)
(1)
Mr. KIU Wai Ming Ordinary shares/share options 6,500,000 — — 6,000,000 12,500,000 2.00%
bt LRk ERE
Mr. HUNG Tin Chun  Ordinary shares/share options — 212,000 - 2,000,000 2,212,000 0.35%
RRERE Lak/ ke (Note 3)
(Hr#3)
Notes: #at -

1. Mr. HUANG Wen Yi (“Mr. Huang”), who was a Director of the
Company, passed away in Hong Kong on 10 February 2008. Mr.
Huang’s estate and Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung (“Ms. Chan”) were
taken to be interested in 449,950,000 Shares held by Smart Presto
Holdings Limited (“Smart Presto”), a controlling shareholder of
the Company, owned as to 90% by estate of the late Mr. Huang
and 10% by Ms. Chan. Among 44,995,000 Shares interest held by
Ms. Chan, 10,000,000 Shares were available for purchase on the
exercise of options granted to certain Directors under the share
purchase scheme adopted by Smart Presto on 5 August 2009
(“Share Purchase Scheme”). Subsequent to a former Executive
Director exercised the share purchase right on 18 March 2011 to
acquire 800,000 Shares of the Company under the Share Purchase
Scheme, Ms. Chan and estate of the late Mr. Huang were taken to
be interested in 449,150,000 Shares held by Smart Presto. Letter
of Administration dated 27 April 2012 was granted by the Probate
Registry in Hong Kong in respect of the late Mr. Huang’s estate in
Hong Kong.

2. These represent the number of shares which will be allotted or
transferred to such Directors upon the exercise of the options
granted to each of them under the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 21 May 2007 and/or the share purchase scheme
adopted by Smart Presto on 5 August 2009, where applicable.

3. 212,000 Shares are currently held by Ms. SZE Ming Fun, who is a
spouse of Mr. HUNG Tin Chun.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company or their associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which the Directors and
chief executive were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above and in the section headed “Long
Term Incentive Schemes” below, at no time during the Year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable a Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares, or debentures, of the Company or other body corporate.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company and its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during the Year.

Non-competition Undertaking

Pursuant to a deed of non-competition entered into between late
Mr. Huang and Ms. Chan, and the Company dated 23 May 2007
(“Non-competition Undertaking”), each of the late Mr. Huang
and Ms. Chan has undertaken to the Company (for itself and on
behalf of each of its subsidiaries) that so long as the Company is
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and so long as
any of Mr. Huang and Ms. Chan remains a controlling shareholder,
he or she will not, and shall procure that his or her associates
will not, compete with the Group, directly or indirectly, whether
on his or her own or jointly with or on behalf of any person, firm,
or company, by carrying on or being engaged, concerned or
interested, directly or indirectly, whether as a shareholder, director,
employee, partner, agent or otherwise, in the carrying on of any
activity or business which directly or indirectly competes or is likely
to be in competition with the footwear business including without
limitation the design and sales of footwear products operated by
the Group or will from time to time be engaged or operated by the
Group in the PRC and Hong Kong, Taiwan and Japan.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed Ms. Chan’s compliance with the Non-competition
Undertaking. The Independent Non-executive Directors are of the
view that none of the controlling shareholders or Directors held
any interests in any business that, either directly or indirectly,
competes or is likely to compete with the Group’s business.

The Company has also received a confirmation from Ms. Chan,
which stated that Ms. Chan, as the controlling shareholder of the
Company, has complied with the Non-competition Undertaking for
the year ended 31 March 2015.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Businesses

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, each of the Directors
confirmed that he/she does not have any interest in any business
apart from the Group’s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

LONG TERM INCENTIVE SCHEMES
Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 21 May
2007 (“Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives to eligible participants to contribute to the Company
and enabling the Company to recruit high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from its adoption date, after which period no further
options granted under the Share Option Scheme (“Post-IPO Share
Options”) will be issued but any such options then outstanding will
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

The total number of the Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all Post-IPO Share Options and any other share option
scheme of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of the Shares in issue as at the Listing Date, being
600,000,000 Shares.

The total number of the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the Post-IPO Share Options and any other share
options granted and to be granted to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period immediately preceding the date of grant of
the Post-IPO Share Option (“Grant Date”) shall not exceed 1% of
the number of Shares in issue as at the Grant Date unless prior
approval of the Company’s shareholders in general meeting is
obtained.
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Report of Directors
EEEHEE

The Post-IPO Share Options may be exercised during a period
as notified by the Board and not exceeding 10 years from the
Grant Date and expiring on the last day of the said 10-year period.
Unless otherwise determined by the Board and specified in the
letter of grant, there is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

The subscription price of the Post-IPO Share Option shall be
determined by the Board and shall be at least the highest of: (a)
the nominal value of the Shares; (b) the average of the closing
prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the Grant Date; and (c) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the Grant Date.

Options to subscribe for an aggregate of 24,900,000 Shares were
granted on 5 August 2009 at an exercise price of HK$0.60 per
Share. The closing price of the Shares on 5 August 2009 was
HK$0.58.

The Post-IPO Share Options granted on 5 August 2009 shall vest
in the grantees in accordance with the timetable below:

Exercisable period
THEH

BRAHERRBEREAIRESEMAG LTE
B BB 10 F 2 MMATTE ARt
10FHEZHKERIBER - BIFEFTERHARE
R R R B ER - 7 RIS AR 1T (8 AT 3 B R
REEHIR -

BERAHAERRBREZCRABESHESSE
EUYAKRPRUAT=ZHz&S%  (akH@E
B () REZRL AR AER S BERBRAE
BMEXRMIIRN 2 FHWHE « K (c)REER
HIRE R P A BRI 2 W (B -

R 2009F 8 A5 A 2 EBREIZITHEEER
A% {75 0.60 7% 7T 2 B & £ 24,900,000 A% A% 17 A
20098 A5H ' Wz WMEAR0.58FTT °

2009 58 A5 AR 2 B R AR E MR B AHE
ARBEA TR RERFE TARA

Percentage of Post-IPO Share Options to vest
HTFEBZERAHEREEREZ

5 August 2010 — 4 August 2017
2010F8 H5H — 201748 H4 H
5 August 2011 — 4 August 2017
20118 H5H — 201748 H4 H
5 August 2012 — 4 August 2017
201268 H5H — 201768 H4H
5 August 2013 — 4 August 2017
20138 H5H — 20178 H4 H
5 August 2014 — 4 August 2017
20148 H5H — 201748 H4 H

Up to 20% of the total number of options granted
NEEBERBRERIZ 20%
Up to 20% of the total number of options granted
TEBEREREALZZ 20%
Up to 20% of the total number of options granted
NHRBERBREERZ 20%
Up to 20% of the total number of options granted
T BERBEREERZ 20%
Up to 20% of the total number of options granted

TBEERBRAEARZ 20%
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Report of Directors
EEEHEE

Details of movements of the Post-IPO Share Options during the REAFEFERAAEREBEBRECZEIHFBN
Year are as follows: ™~
No. of Post-IPO Share Options
BRAREREBRERR
Balance Balance
as at as at
1 April 31 March
2014 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2015
R2014 F during during during during R2015F
Name or category 4R1H the Year the Year the Year the Year 3A31H
of grantee RBEAZERHER 2R REAFERE RAFESTE REFEREHE REFEXX 2R
Directors =
Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung BEER+ 6,000,000 - = - — 6,000,000
Mr. HUNG Tin Chun HARESLE 2,000,000 = = = — 2,000,000
Employees &8
In aggregate At 11,180,000 = = = 160,000 11,020,000
Total @t 19,180,000 - - - 160,000 19,020,000

None of the Post-IPO Share Options was exercised or cancelled
and a total of 160,000 Post-IPO Share Options have been lapsed
during the Year.

Share Purchase Scheme

Smart Presto has adopted a share purchase scheme on 5 August
2009 (“Share Purchase Scheme”) for the purpose of advancing
the interest of the Group by rewarding persons who have made
or will make valuable contribution to the business of the Group
or is/are regarded as valuable human resources of the Group.
Subject to the provisions under the Share Purchase Scheme, the
maximum number of Shares available for purchase on the exercise
of options granted under the Share Purchase Scheme (“Share
Purchase Options”) shall be 30,000,000 Shares. Any Shares that
are subject to a Share Purchase Option (or any portion thereof)
that lapses, expires or for any reason is terminated unexercised
shall become available for purchase under the Share Purchase
Scheme.

Options to subscribe for an aggregate of 10,000,000 Shares were

granted on 5 August 2009 at an exercise price of HK$0.60 per
Share.
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Report of Directors
EEEHEE

The Share Purchase Options granted on 5 August 2009 shall vest R2009F 8 A5 EHRE RN EEEBRIEUAT
in the grantees in accordance with the timetable below: R B T AR A

Exercisable period Percentage of Share Purchase Options to vest
1THEH HTFEBZROBEEZ

5 August 2010 — 4 August 2017 Up to 20% of the total number of options granted

20108 A5H —20174F8 A4H NEBBEREER 2 20%

5 August 2011 — 4 August 2017 Up to 20% of the total number of options granted

20114 8HA5H —201748A4H THREER AR Z 20%

5 August 2012 — 4 August 2017 Up to 20% of the total number of options granted

201248 A5H —201748 A 4H NERIBEREER 2 20%

5 August 2013 — 4 August 2017 Up to 20% of the total number of options granted

20138 A5H — 201748 A4H TEBBE R A 2 20%

5 August 2014 — 4 August 2017 Up to 20% of the total number of options granted

20148 A5H — 20174848 BB AR 2 20%

Details of movements of the Share Purchase Options during the RAFEE  ROBERZEHFENT !

Year are as follows:

No. of Share Purchase Options

ROBEEHE
Balance Balance
as at as at
1 April 31 March
2014 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2015
R2014 F during during during during R2015F
Name or category ARAZ 4R1H the Year the Year the Year the Year 3A31H
of grantee HAHER 2% REFEERE RAFETE REAFERHHE REEEXX i
Director =
Mr. KIU Wai Ming BlEREE 6,000,000 = = = = 6,000,000
Total b 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
None of the Share Purchase Options was exercised, cancelled RAFE  BERNBEEETE SHRX
and lapsed during the Year. e
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Report of Directors
EEEHEE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2015, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of
the Company), had the following interests and short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO:

TERRAROREBRG 2 EERXR

R2015F3A31H  MEZMAM  HIREF
HEREEIEDIEXVEFE 2 R EI N AR AR T
WEE - NIRBEE SRS KA 5 XV EB 5 336 &
FEBzERMARE  ATATLIERATE
B mRTRAB)RARB KRG RIEERKDZ
RS RART

Approximate

% of the

Company’s

Number and total issued

nature of share capital

Name of substantial interests held HERAFE

shareholder Capacity P BITRABH

FTERRER 54 A RME 2R %

Smart Presto (Note) Beneficial owner 449,150,000 72.03%
HEECHE) BEREAA

Mr. HUI Wan Hon Interests held jointly with Ng Chee Yin Susie Linda 56,271,400 9.02%

EELE B2 Ng Chee Yin Susie Linda R H 2 #
Note: Mt -

Smart Presto, the registered owner of 449,150,000 Shares, was owned as
to 90% (90 shares) by estate of the late Mr. Huang and 10% (10 shares)
by Ms. Chan in the capacity of beneficial owners respectively.

All the interests disclosed above represents long positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, the Company
had not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company
which were required to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of Part XV of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.
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Report of Directors
EEEHEE

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, all suppliers of the Group are independent third
parties. The Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately
9.8% of the Group’s total purchases and the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 40.3% of the Group’s total
purchases.

Our Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of
the total turnover for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s major customers or suppliers
noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company had no transactions which constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
Corporate Governance Report on pages 11 to 20 of this annual
report.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Year and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there
is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as at the latest practicable date prior to the issuance of
this annual report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A
resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as
independent auditor of the Company for the ensuing year will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

CHAN Mei Sheung
Chairman

Hong Kong
23 June 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
By AR R S

i

pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WALKER GROUP HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Walker
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 37 to 110, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap.32), and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
By AR R S

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2015, and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the predecessor
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32).

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2015
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Consolidated Income Statement

e W R

For the Year Ended 31 March 2015

BZ2015F3H31 HILFE
2015 2014
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
i3 FET FET
Revenue Wz 5 1,090,668 1,299,154
Cost of sales SHE AR 6 (473,751) (616,940)
Gross profit ER 616,917 682,214
Selling and distribution costs SHE KD SHAA 6 (630,998) (754,318)
Administrative expenses THEA 6 (88,838) (154,891)
Other gains/(losses), net Hihlas/(E518) - F58 7 10,388 (772)
Other income H A 8 7,035 12,029
Operating loss REEE (85,496) (215,738)
Finance income E TN 11 212 249
Finance costs Bi5E A 11 (701) (581)
Finance costs, net MISER  F58 (489) (332)
Loss before income tax RETFIEHATER (85,985) (216,070)
Income tax expense FrS iR 12 (2,415) (13,902)
Loss for the year TEEEE (88,400) (229,972)
Attributable to: BEL
Equity holders of the Company AKAFIERFTEA (87,420) (227,851)
Non-controlling interests EIS (980) (2,121)
(88,400) (229,972)
Loss per share for loss attributable PAYNSIE: ZESY SN
to equity holders of the Company EIhE 1R 2 R Es 18
(expressed in HK cents per share) (AESRBWZS)
— basic — HAK 14 (14.02) (36.54)
— diluted — s 14 (14.02) (36.54)
Dividend &2 15 — —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWER

For the Year Ended 31 March 2015
BZ2015F3H31 HILFE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Lossfortheyear - ATERSR L. (88400)  (229,972)
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 E W s
Items that have been reclassified or may be B &0 Ak B seEH
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss: NEEERZIER ¢
Fair value losses on available-for-sale A ESmEE 2 AT E
financial assets &8 = (408)
Fair value release on disposal of PEMNHLESHEERER
available-for-sale financial assets NEE — (137)
Currency translation differences fEH Z%E (1,921) 1,037
Total items that have been reclassified or EENBIEETEER
may be subsequently reclassified to profit NEEEHIEREE
or loss (1,921) 492
Total comprehensive income for the year AREE2EKRZEERE (90,321) (229,480)
Attributable to: PG
Equity holders of the Company RAGIERTEE A (89,185) (227,239)
Non-controlling interests FEPRR M 2 (1,136) (2,241)
(90,321) (229,480)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Walker Group Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE AR R ER
As at 31 March 2015
R201543 531 H

2015 2014
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Wit FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R 16 34,942 40,386
Investment properties "B 17 — 3,579
Intangible assets B ARE 18 2,570 4,605
Deferred income tax assets RIEFBIRERE 20 6,091 9,547
Rental deposits ek 23 10,995 14,781
Current assets RBEE
Inventories ey 21 242,388 320,393
Trade receivables FEWE 5 FIE 22 115,024 119,636
Deposits, prepayments and other e~ FBRIE R EMER
receivables I 23 40,044 50,043
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRE&FBEIAR 24 94,939 107,044
492,395 597,116
Assets held for sale HAEELEEE 25 5,022 —
497,417 597,116
Total assets EERE 552,015 670,014
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to AR TEFIZTEABEREAR
equity holders of the Company e
Share capital i 26 62,356 62,356
Share premium B& 10 % (B 26 562,600 562,600
Reserves ke 27 (257,466) (168,395)
367,490 456,561
Non-controlling interests IR (2,316) (1,180)
Total equity fEREEE 365,174 455,381
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE AR R ER
As at 31 March 2015
R201543 531 H

(Continued)
(%)
2015 2014
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Wit FET FET
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Obligation under finance lease BE M EAE 28 115 221
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFFISH B E 20 5,990 5,989
e . N 6105 ! 6,210
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables e B 55008 29 101,396 128,095
Accruals and other payables fEETE B R H A EN 508 29 53,193 71,854
Borrowings BE 30 25,040 5,260
Obligation under finance lease A EAE 28 106 106
Tax payable JERTTRIE 1,001 3,108
180,736 208,423
Total liabilities BEAE 186,841 214,633
Total equity and liabilities EakEERERE 552,015 670,014
Net current assets RBEEZFE 316,681 388,693
Total assets less current liabilities BEZERAEBAS 371,279 461,591
On behalf of the Board RREED
Director Director
EZ EZE
CHAN Mei Sheung KIU Wai Ming
PRESE SHH
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BEb 2 ISt Rt F 4R e B ek 2 A ER (D o

financial statements.

Walker Group Holdings Limited
BEESETKRBER QA 40



Statement of Financial Position

B B iR R

As at 31 March 2015

R201543 531 H
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Wizt FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE REE 16 = —
Interests in subsidiaries NGIENGIPE T 19 466,884 584,146
S 466,884 584,146
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e BRFUAEREM
receivables FE W IR 23 214 186
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE W B B8 1 R R IE 19 2,167 2,368
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRE&FHEIEAR 24 596 529
2,977 3,083
Total assets EEHT 469,861 587,229
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to Zx2 F#FEFH A EERA
equity holders of the Company ke
Share capital A% A 26 62,356 62,356
Share premium &1 & B 26 562,600 562,600
Reserves B 27 (156,719) (38,926)
Totalequity  ___......] MBRE 468,237 586,00
LIABILITIES i=Ri
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R HE MR OB 29 1,624 1,199
Total equity and liabilities EEREBEE 469,861 587,229
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,353 1,884
Total assets less current liabilities Z‘EZAERAEBAS 468,237 586,030
On behalf of the Board REES®
Director Director
EFE EZE
CHAN Mei Sheung KIU Wai Ming
PRES SHH
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BEb 2 ISt Rt F 4R e B ek 2 A ER (D o

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended 31 March 2015

EE2015F3 531 HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FAREREEAERS
Share Non-
capital and controlling
premium Accumulated interests Total
B&  Reserves losses  Sub-total FER equity
RiEE & ZiEE gt B EXBE
(Note 26)
(Wit 26)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T TAT FAT FET FET
Balance at 1 April 2013 R2013F4 A1 B ER 624,956 131,492 (73,138) 683,310 (1,074) 682,236
Fair value losses on available-for-sale A HESREEY
financial assets AYLEER - (408) - (408) - (408)
Fair value release on disposal of HETETESHEERRD
available-for-sale financial assets ZRTE — (137) — (137) - (137)
Currency translation differences ERZEE - 1,157 - 1,157 (120) 1,037
Loss for the year TEEEE - - (227,851) (227,851) (2,121) (229,972)
Total recognised income and ERANARBEXES
expenses - 612 (227,851)  (227,239) (2241)  (229,480)
Transfer i — (50) 50 - - -
Share option scheme — value of Bk 2 — BERKER
employee services (Note 26) (Hit2e) — 371 — 371 - 371
Share award (Note 26) IRt RE (Hrit26) - 119 — 119 - 119
Capital injection from non-controlling  3EFMRERTE
interests - - — — 2,135 2,135
Balance at 31 March 2014 Ro01453 A 31 B2is 624,956 132544 (300,939) 456,561 (1180) 455,381
Currency translation differences BEHERE - (1,765) — (1,765) (156) (1,921)
Loss for the year TEEEE - - (87,420) (87,420) (980) (88,400)
Total recognised income and ERANAREXES
expenses — (1,765) (87,420) (89,185) (1,136) (90,321)
Share option scheme — value of Bk 2 — BERKER
employee services (Note 26) (Hit2e) - 86 - 86 - 86
Share award (Note 26) TRty RE (Hrit26) - 28 - 28 - 28
Balance at 31 March 2015 201553 31 28 624,956 130803  (388,359) 367,490 (2316) 365,174

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A e ~— |
b7 N =] igigifznb£§i5éé
For the Year Ended 31 March 2015
BZ2015F3H31 HILFE

2015 2014
Note HK$°’000 HK$°000
Bzt FET FAET
Cash flows from operating REXBZRERE
activities
Cash used in operations REXBACHS 31(a) (21,869) (17,403)
Interest paid BB (701) (581)
Income tax refund REIFFEH 1,578 —
Income tax paid RS (2,639) (1,049)
Net cash used in operating activities = &EE£KMA L FHE (23,631) (19,033)
Cash flows from investing RETBzHERE
activities
Purchases of property, plant and BAME  BERSE
equipment (17,306) (21,152)
Purchases of intangible assets BABMEE (332) (119)
Proceeds from disposal of property,  HEWE -« FiER&E2
plant and equipment FriS3UA 31(b) 7,462 264
Proceeds from disposal of investment HE®REWE 2 FrFH0E
properties 31(c) 3,770 —
Proceeds from disposal of available- HERHEESREEY
for-sale financial assets FT183%IE 31(d) — 39,321
Dividend income received on AEHESREEY
available-for-sale financial assets B U AT B — 1,297
Interest received BUHLE 212 249
Net cash (used in)/generated from REZH(FA),/ 5z
investing activities BeFHE (6,194) 19,860
Cash flows from financing RETB2HERE
activities
Proceeds from borrowings BB ZBEHE 80,736 103,587
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (60,736) (103,587)
Capital injection from non-controlling  3F¥ERESTE
interests — 2,135
Capital elements of finance lease BEHEN R ERE MR
payments (106) (52)
Net cash generated from financing MEFBMECREFE
activities 19,894 2,083
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash ReRBREZEERA(RD)/
and cash equivalents BnFEEE (9,931) 2,910
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUzHeRREEEEE
beginning of the year 107,044 104,179
Exchange differences PE X =% (2,174) (45)
Cash and cash equivalents atthe H&ZESKESEEER
end of the year 24 94,939 107,044
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BEb < ISt Rt F 4R e B ek 2 A ER D o

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

GENERAL INFORMATION
—REHR

Walker Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the retailing of footwear in Hong Kong, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Taiwan.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
10 November 2006 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“HKSE”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollar, unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 June
2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
EFREHBORBE

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with the applicable requirements of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this
financial year and the comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note
4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Amended standards adopted by the Group

The following amended standards have been
adopted by the Group for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2014:

Amendment to HKAS 32, “Financial instruments:
Presentation”, on offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities. This amendment clarifies that
the right of set-off must not be contingent on a
future event. It must also be legally enforceable
for all counterparties in the normal course of
business, as well as in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy. The amendment
also considers settlement mechanisms. The
amendment has no significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36, “Impairment of assets”,
on the recoverable amount disclosures for non-
financial assets. This amendment removed certain
disclosures of the recoverable amount of CGUs
which had been included in HKAS 36 by the issue
of HKFRS 13. It also enhanced the disclosures
of information about the recoverable amount of
impaired assets if that amount is based on fair
value less costs of disposal. The amendment has
no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

The following amended standards and
interpretation have been published and are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2014, but are not
currently relevant to the Group.

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial instruments:
Recognition and
measurement — Novation
of derivatives

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment entities

HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) 21 Levies
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts
and Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation as from
the Company’s first financial year commencing
on or after 31 December 2015 in accordance
with section 358 of that Ordinance, i.e. for the
year ending 31 March 2016. The Group is in the
process of making an assessment of expected
impact of the changes in the Companies
Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application
of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that
the impact is unlikely to be significant and only the
presentation and the disclosure of information in
the financial statements will be affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
FESTHEMEE)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 mEEE(E)

(iiiy LATHEE Re&EFT 2 R4 2014
FA4A1BRABRZYBRFELE
EREEAENR BN EERR

(iii) The following new and amended standards have
been issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 April 2014 and have not been

early adopted.

R4 o

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on
or after

R B8 2%
Mite 2 FEMBEXN

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
BREGTEUNE1RUEFTA)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendments)

S D EALE A ST o
R 38 5% (B 7T )

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendments)

BREH RS 16 RE B G
ZERISE 41 5% (BRI )

HKAS 19 (Amendment)

BEGTTENFE 195 (BFTAR)

HKAS 27 (Amendment)

BA G ENF 27 R (ERTA)
HKFRS 9
BRMBRERLAE 95

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BB BIREERE 105 &
BRI ERE 285 (1BFTA)
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)
EAUMBHEELB10% B
FBmEERE 125 BB GG
R 28 5% (B AT A)

HKFRS 11 (Amendment)

BERMBHRELENE 115K UETAR)
HKFRS 14
BRMBRELRFE 145
HKFRS 15

BRI BRELERFE 1558
HKFRSs (Amendment)
BREMBRELER(BFTA)
HKFRSs (Amendment)
BERMBRELR(BFTAR)
HKFRSs (Amendment)
BRMBRELER(BFTA)

Disclosure initiative

R E

Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortization

WERBHEARREZES

Agriculture: Bearer plants
R¥ : £ENMEY

Employee benefits

B EEF

Equity method in separate financial
statements

CERVE B R TE A b

Financial instruments

SHIA

Sale or contribution of assets between

an investor and its associate or joint
venture

REAEBEMANTRELRTZH
ZEEHEIEE

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception

REEE ARAHZER

Accounting for acquisitions of interests
in joint operations

WEHRK SRR gHE

Regulatory deferral accounts

EERERP

Revenue from contracts with customers

BEFAHMBA

Annual improvements 2012 cycle
2012 F Az FEBCE

Annual improvements 2013 cycle
2013 FRAHIZ FEE

Annual improvements 2014 cycle
2014 FRAMZ FEE

47

1 January 2016
20161 H1H
1 January 2016

201641 A1 R

1 January 2016
2016 F1 A1 H

1 July 2014
20145 7H1H
1 January 2016

20161 H1H
1 January 2018
20181 A1 H
1 January 2016

2016 F1 A1H
1 January 2016

20161 A1H

1 January 2016

201641 A1 H
1 January 2016
20161 H1H
1 January 2017
2017F1 A1 H

1 July 2014
20145 7H1 R

1 July 2014
2014F7H1H8
1 January 2016
2016 F1 A1H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TREHBRBEE)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The Group plans to adopt the above new standards
and amendments when they become effective. The
Group has already commenced an assessment of the
related impact of adopting the above new standards
and amendments to the Group. The Group is not yet
in a position to state whether substantial changes to
the Group’s accounting policies and presentation of the
financial statements will result.

Subsidiaries

(a) Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(i)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Walker Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FESTHEMEE)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

(i)

Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as
a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FESTHEMEE)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners of the
subsidiary in their capacity as owners of the
subsidiary. The difference between fair value
of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying amount of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

(b)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

2.4

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
(“Executive Directors”) that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

(c)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within ‘finance costs, net’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other gains/
(losses), net’.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

— assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

— income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings, are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in equity are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the gain
or loss on sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

25

Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not
occupied by the companies in the Group or for sale
in the ordinary course of business, are classified as
investment properties.

Investment properties are initially measured at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of investment properties are calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost over their
estimated useful life of 50 years.

The investment properties’ residual value and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
statement of financial position date.

Investment properties’ carrying amounts are written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
investment properties’ carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
determined by comparing the proceeds and the carrying
amount of the investment property and is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
FESTHEMEE)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 26 Y- BERRHE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate cost over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease term

Buildings 50 years
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term
Motor vehicles 25%
Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment
Computer equipment 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement
of financial position date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised within ‘other gains/(losses), net’ in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.7

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Acquired trademark

Acquired trademark that have definite useful life
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses, if any. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the costs of acquired trademark over its
estimated useful life.

Subsequent to the annual review by management,
the Group has revised the estimated useful life of
the acquired trademark from 20 years to 5 years,
with effect from 1 April 2014. The effect of the
change in estimated useful life will be recognised
prospectively. It is expected that such change in
amortisation pattern will have no significant impact
to the amortisation expense in future years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of 5 years.

Computer software development costs recognised
as assets are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of not exceeding 5 years.

Patents and licences

Expenditure on acquiring licences for sale of
products is initially recognised and measured at
fair value, which represent the capitalisation of
unavoidable licence fee payments in accordance
with the licence agreements. Cost of licences is
amortised using the straight-line method over the
licence period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.8

29

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
been available for use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets
(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables. The classification depends
on the purposes for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period, which are classified as non-
current assets. Loans and receivables are
classified as ‘trade receivables’, ‘deposits,
prepayments, and other receivables’ and ‘cash and
cash equivalents’ in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Recognition and measurement

(c)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

2.10 Inventories

Inventories representing merchandising stocks are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and, where
applicable, costs of conversion and other costs that
have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition, is calculated using the
weighted-average costing method.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.11

212

2.13

2.14

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the assets is reduced through the use of
an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement within
selling and distribution costs. When a trade receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
accounts for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against
selling and distribution costs in the consolidated income
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturity of three
months or less.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are re-classified as held for
sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.15

2.16

2.17

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting
date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

TREHBRBEE)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii) Deferred income tax

(a)

(b)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
FTESTBERBESE)
2.18 Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
statement of financial position date.
(b) Bonus entitlements
The expected cost of bonus payments is
recognised as a liability when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.
Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled
within 12 months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are
settled.
(c) Pension obligations

The group companies in the PRC participate
in defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by relevant government authorities
for its employees in the PRC and contribute to
these plans based on certain percentage of the
salaries of the employees on a monthly basis,
up to a maximum fixed monetary amount, as
stipulated by the relevant government authorities.
The government authorities undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations payable to all
existing and future retired employees under these
plans.

The group companies in Hong Kong participate in
a mandatory provident fund (‘MPF Scheme’) for
its employees in Hong Kong. MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution scheme in accordance with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance.
Under the rules of MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are required to contribute 5%
of the employees’ salaries, up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per employee per month. The assets
of MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
FESTHEMEE)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued) 2.18 EERTR(E)

(d) Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans. The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed over
the vesting period is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted, excluding the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets).
Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. At each statement of financial
position date, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest.
It recognises the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when
the options are exercised.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
FESTHEMEE)

2.20 Revenue recognition 2.20 W@ 2 ER

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.
Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, rebates,
returns and discounts and after eliminated sales within
the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described below. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods — retail

The Group operates a chain of retail outlets for
selling footwear. Sales of goods are recognised
when a group entity sells a product to the
customer. Retail sales are usually in cash or by
credit card.

(b) Sales of goods — wholesale

The Group sells a range of footwear products
in the wholesale market. Sales of goods are
recognised when a group entity has delivered
products to the wholesaler, the wholesaler has
full discretion over the channel and price to sell
the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the wholesale’s acceptance of
the products. Delivery does not occur until the
products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the wholesaler, and either
the wholesaler has accepted the products in
accordance with sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.20

2.21

2.22

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(d) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment is
established.

(e) Licence fee and royalty

Licence fee and royalty income is recognised on
an accrual basis in accordance with the substance
of the relevant agreements.

(f) Rental income

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentive received from the
lessor and exclusive of any turnover rental payments
which are calculated by reference to a pre-determined
percentage of a tenant’s monthly sales) are expensed
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease. Turnover rental payments are
recognised on an accrual basis.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment,
where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)
2.22 Lease (Continued)
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in other short-term and other long-term payables. The
interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
lease is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of
the asset and the lease term.
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
MR EEEE
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk, price risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of
the Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial
structure and the current operations of the Group,
no major hedging activities are undertaken by
management.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Transactions are mainly conducted in
the functional currency of each group entity and
therefore the foreign currency risk is considered to
be minimal.

The conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
PBEEE

BE)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates as the Group has no significant
interest-bearing asset. The Group’s interest rate
risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate
risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest-rate risk.

At 31 March 2015, one of the Group’s borrowings
denominated in New Taiwan dollar was carried at
fixed rate but exposed the Group to a minimal fair
value interest rate risk. Borrowings denominated
in HK dollor were carried at variable rate. As
at 31 March 2015, if interest rate of borrowings
denominated in HK dollor had increased/
decreased by 50 basis points (2014: Nil) with all
other variables constant, the Group’s loss after
tax and accumulated losses would have been
approximately HK$100,000 (2014: Nil) higher/
lower.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, as well as credit exposures to trade
and other receivables. Management has policies
in place to monitor the exposures to these credit
risks on an on-going basis. Deposits are placed
with major and sizeable banks with high credit
ratings and management expects no losses from
non-performing banks.

Sales to retail customers are made in cash or via
major credit cards. The Group’s concessionaire
sales through department stores are generally
collectible within 60 days from the invoice date.
Normally the Group does not require collaterals
from trade debtors. The existing debtors have no
significant defaults in the past.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure
that wholesale sales of products are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history and
the Group performs periodic credit evaluations of
its customers.

The Group also makes deposits (current and non-
current) for rental of certain of its retail sales point
with the relevant landlords. Management does not
expect any loss arising from non-performance by
these counterparties.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting dates is the fair value of each class
of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

B ERE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

BE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

In managing the Group’s liquidity requirement, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been
for working capital and capital expenditures. The
Group finances its working capital requirements
primarily through funds generated from operations
and borrowings from banks. As at 31 March
2015, the Group has unutilised banking facilities
of HK$145,350,000 (2014: HK$182,515,000).
To improve the Group’s operating performance
and alleviate its liquidity risk, management is
implementing measures to improve profit margin
and to reduce the operating cash outflows, as well
as selling non-sales generating assets.

The directors of the Company monitor the Group’s
liquidity through cash flow projections covering a
period of twelve months from the date of statement
of financial position. There are continuous
communication with the Group’s principal banks
on the Group’s performance. Furthermore, the
banking facilities are fully secured by the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and assets held for
sale. As such, the directors of the Company are
confident that all the banking facilities will continue
to be available to the Group, and the Group will
have sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due, for the next
twelve months from the date of the statement of
financial position.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the statement of financial
position date to the contractual maturity date. The
accounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group’s capital structure is being reviewed annually
to ensure these objectives are to be achieved.
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BEEREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HEEBEERE)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) nEBELEEE)
Between
Within 1 year 1 to 5 years Total
1R 1F&E5F st
HK$°’000 HK$°’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
As at 31 March 2015: M201563HA3108 :
Borrowings BE 25,071 — 25,071
Trade payables JERTE 5508 101,396 — 101,396
Other payables, accruals H A AT FIE
and other liabilities FEFtER M EMEE 53,312 128 53,440
179,779 128 179,907
As at 31 March 2014: MR2014F3A31R8 :
Borrowings BE 5,284 — 5,284
Trade payables FERTE 558 128,095 — 128,095
Other payables, accruals H A T RIE
and other liabilities A ERREMAE 71,972 246 72,218
205,351 246 205,597
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXERERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
BBEREEE)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 3.2 EXEREE(E)

R2015F AEB R AEERFTE
EABELLERE%A - R2014F &
20153 A31H ZEEBEBLL XM

During the year 2015, the Group’s strategy was to
maintain a gearing ratio within 5%. The gearing ratios
at 31 March 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

B

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$°000

FEx FET

Borrowings (Note 30) BB (H77#30) 25,040 5,260
Obligation under finance lease LA E A

(Note 28) (K5t 28) 221 327

Total debts FER=RE 25,261 5,587

Total assets HEE 552,015 670,014

Gearing ratio BEABLE 4.6% 0.8%

Note: The calculation of gearing ratio is based on the total
debts divided by total assets as at 31 March.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of
trade receivables and payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
BEAGTHEE RAE

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)
BERETHETTRHE(E)

(a) Useful life of trademark

Subsequent to the annual review by management, with
effective from 1 April 2014, the Group has revised the
estimated useful life of the acquired trademark from 20
years to 5 years. This conclusion is supported by the
past and future financial performance of the trademark.
The effect of change in estimated useful life will be
recognised prospectively. It is expected that such
change in amortisation pattern will have no significant
impact to the amortisation expense in future years.

(b) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual residual
value and useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of any future management
determination of shop relocation or renovation.
Management will increase the depreciation charge
where residual value or useful lives are less than
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(c) Estimated write-downs of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable
value based on an assessment of the realisability of
inventories. Write-downs on inventories are recorded
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be realised. The identification
of write-downs requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact
the carrying value of inventories and write-downs of
inventories in the years in which such estimates have
been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)
BERETHETTRHE(E)

4.
(d)
(e)
()
5.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations or
market valuations. The calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

Impairment of trade receivables

The policy of impairment assessment for trade
receivables of the Group is based on the current
market condition and the credit history of its customers
and department stores. Management reassesses the
provision at each date of statement of financial position.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

2 EBE R
The Group is principally engaged in the retailing of footwear
in Hong Kong, the PRC and Taiwan.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review
the Group’s financial information to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
DEER ()

The Executive Directors consider the business from a
geographic prospective. The Executive Directors assess the
performance of the operating segments based on a measure
of segment profit/(loss) without allocation of administrative
expenses, other gains/(losses), other income/(expenses) and
finance income/(costs), which is consistent with that in the
financial statements.

Segment assets exclude deferred income tax assets.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred income tax
liabilities and obligation under finance lease.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales are
based on the country in which the customer is located, and
total assets and capital expenditure are based on the country
where the assets are located.

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2015 are

HTEFRMEZEXRS - UITEFRE
DEEA S (BR) (TREMDRZITRE
A Hisls (BE) - HlA (X
H) RHBRA(BR)) 25t BEERFHE
REDHZ R HEBERRTEE —
o

DWEETBRBREMSHEE °

HEAETRERNHE  EEREHEE
RE AT AR -

BB DHBEMS - HEDNREPMER

RiEH - MARBEEMEARZNIREEMRE
BRMEH -

HE2015F3A3MBILFEZEELE N

as follows:

-

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ2015%3A31 HILFE

Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Unallocated Total
B8 H =) ROE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue from sales of footwear, KB « HTRE
fashion wears and accessories FoefisHeE 2 WA 213,207 863,593 13,868 — 1,090,668
Segment loss SHEE (10,600) (3,208) (273)  (71,415)  (85,496)
Finance income YA 212
Finance costs HKER (701)
Income tax expense FIERRY (2,415)
Loss for the year AFEER (88,400)
Other segment items are as HiAHEE T -
follows:
Capital expenditure BEARRS 6,723 10,584 331 - 17,638
Depreciation of property, plantand #1% - BELREZTE
equipment 5,540 12,360 190 — 18,090
Depreciation of investment BEMELNE
properties ) 154 — - = 154
Amortisation of intangible assets  EF & E 2 #i 1,345 1,024 — = 2,369
Impairment of property, plantand  #1%  BE R &BEZHE
equipment ) 698 — — - 698
Impairment of intangible assets ~ EEE 2 A — — — — —
Net (write-back of)/provision for 17 (#m) /& %5
inventories (5,658) 10,731 50 — 5,123
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e M BRRHEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

DERE R (E)
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2014 are HZE2014F3A3BIEFEZBEED
as follows: ™~

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HZ2014F3A31ALEFE

Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan  Unallocated Total
BA HhE = AR @5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEr FET FET FET

Revenue from sales of footwear,  REELE « RiTRE R

fashion wears and accessories FefsHE 2 A 231,551 1,048,678 18,925 — 1,299,154
Segment loss S HEE (26,130)  (42,922) (3,052)  (143,634)  (215,738)
Finance income BB 249
Finance costs HKER (581)
Income tax expense FEEEX (13,902)
Loss for the year AFEEER (229,972)
Other segment items are as HEthA#mAmT

follows:

Capital expenditure BEARRY 5,584 15,931 135 — 21,650
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BEREEFE

and equipment 7,807 20,035 488 — 28,330
Depreciation of investment RENMEHE

properties 60 — — — 60
Amortisation of intangible assets &L &R 2 % ¥ 1,944 1,005 — 2,446 5,395
Impairment of property, plantand ~ ¥1% - BE Rk E 2 RE

equipment 1,291 — — — 1,291
Impairment of intangible assets ~ EFEEZH(E — — — 35,468 35,468
Net provision for inventories FERETSR 9,791 80,343 2,318 — 92,452
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e M BRRHEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

PEER(E)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 March 2015 are as M2015F3A3MAZHHEERAEMN
follows: N
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Total
BE H =) et
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET TFHET FET
Segment assets DEEE 123,250 416,307 6,367 545,924
Unallocated assets KOBEE 6,091
Total assets B EREE 552,015
Segment liabilities HEEE 52,096 120,657 6,876 179,629
Unallocated liabilities AOEEBE 7,212
Total liabilities BfERsE 186,841

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 March 2014 are as

R2014F3A3MBAZo A EEREBEW

follows: N
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Total
B H = et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT FEIT FET
Segment assets DEEE 164,902 485,977 9,588 660,467
Unallocated assets AOBEE 9,547
Total assets BELT 670,014
Segment liabilities PEEE 30,806 167,491 6,912 205,209
Unallocated liabilities AHEEEE 9,424
Total liabilities BEER 214,633
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6. EXPENSES BY NATURE

EMEsE2EX
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Purchase of and changes in inventories HEAGFENEFEE 468,628 524,488
Auditor’s remuneration B A BN & 1,915 1,915
Depreciation of property, plant and Wz - BEREEZ
equipment (Note 16) WE Kz 16)
— owned assets — BBEZEE 17,977 28,264
— leased assets — HEZEE 113 66
Impairment of property, plant and Wz - BEREEZ
equipment (Note 16) WIE(HEE 16) 698 1,291
Depreciation of investment properties REMEITE
(Note 17) (H1it17) 154 60
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18) {2 & 2 ¥ 44 (H1:1 18) 2,369 5,395
Impairment of intangible assets (Note 18) & EE 2 RIE(H1:F18) = 35,468
Bad debts written off SRS 617 325
Operating lease rental in respect of HETHREF 2
leasehold land and buildings wERERS
— minimum lease payments — HIEHEEFE 39,183 45,075
— turnover rental expenses — REEBTECHSRE 323,460 399,732
Advertising and promotion expenses EEREERT 21,044 23,775
Net provision for inventories FEREFE 5,123 92,452
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) EERMFEZ(HiF9) 236,572 273,468
Other expenses EfFEY 75,734 94,375
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution $§E R - $HE & 564
costs and administrative expenses AR K AT B 4B 5E 1,193,587 1,526,149
Expenses by nature of the Group has been presented in the RiFEREREIN 2 AEBRIEE S A2 H
consolidated income statement as follows: SR
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost of sales HE A 473,751 616,940
Selling and distribution costs THE Ko SHBCAR 630,998 754,318
Administrative expenses THRER 88,838 154,891
1,193,587 1,526,149
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7. OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET
Hihzz, (E518) - FE

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FETL
Gain on fair value release on disposal of HEJHRLESMEERER
available-for-sale financial assets Z N ERE — 137
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEESMEE Y
financial assets 518 = (30)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWSE - KERE#EZ
plant and equipment e (FE) 5,925 (749)
Gain on disposal of investment properties  HEREME 2 W= 2,946 —
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) SNE Wz, (518 ) FE 1,517 (130)
10,388 (772)
8. OTHER INCOME
Hb g A
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Dividend income on available-for-sale ARNESRHEE Y
financial assets f& B HA — 1,297
Licence fee and royalty income R AERENERA 763 1,098
Government subsidies B8 4,732 8,404
Others Hth 1,540 1,230
7,035 12,029

Government subsidies represent incentives received from the
PRC tax authority for investment in Waigaogiao Free Trade

Zone in the PRC.

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

BT B R s A BSNS BRI R 2 IR B

R EIRSHEE Z B A -

EEEANBEZ(BREEEMHS)
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, wages and bonuses e TERELA 200,671 227,557
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RS — ST T2 30,357 39,779
Share award and option expenses AR 10 28 R B AR R 2 114 490
Welfare and other expenses B F R H A 2 5,430 5,642
236,572 273,468
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS
EEREREEEZHS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=Efe
The aggregate of emoluments paid/payable to directors B/ EAAERES e8I T

of the Group are as follows:

2015 2014
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Fees ik 744 744
Basic salaries, housing allowances, ¥ - (TFEERL -
other allowances and benefits-in-kind H A2 Bh M EYH = 4,583 3,810
Share options and share award B LR Gm EE 49 84
Contributions to pension plans RIRBET B 51 30
5,427 4,668
The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31 #HZE2015 F3ASIHLEFERESHEEH
March 2015 are set out below: AT
Basic salaries,
housing
allowance,
other
allowances
and
benefits-in-kind ~ Share options  Contributions
& and share to pension
EEEE award plans
Fees ARk BhRE Bife Total
ik RENFE Rk RE TR @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FE7r F#7n FET TE7 FE7r
Executive Directors: BITES:
Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung RELUT - 2,406 20 17 2,443
*Mr. KIU Wai Ming *BHRELE - 1,538 20 17 1,575
**Mr. HUNG Tin Chun HERERE - 639 9 17 665
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYEHTES:
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael TETEE 264 - - - 264
Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP TRHELA AL 240 - - - 240
Mr. LEE Kwan Hung E3c) St 240 - - - 240
744 4,583 49 51 5,427
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
EENEREEB2ME ()

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEME(#&)
The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31 HE2014F3A3MALFESEETHEH
March 2014 are set out below: FIEATR -

Basic salaries,

housing
allowance,
other
allowances
and
benefits-in-kind ~ Share options  Contributions
E# and share to pension
i award plans
Fees E Ui R Eihe Total
ik REDHE R 1EE HEEE @zt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET TAT FEr TET TET
Executive Directors: BTES:
Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung F£3 San - 2,266 42 15 2,323
*Mr. KIU Wai Ming *BRELE - 1,544 42 15 1,601
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUX#HTES:
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael LBIEE 264 - - - 264
Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP LRHELAFHL 240 - - - 240
Mr. LEE Kwan Hung RS 240 - - - 240
744 3,810 84 30 4,668
* Mr. Kiu is also the CEO of the Group. * BEREEMARER ZITIHARE -
**  Mr. Hung was appointed as Executive Director on 16 > HEER2014F 916 HELZ A
September 2014. WiTES -
No emoluments have been paid to the directors or the REBRFALEHEEI AL ED
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or FMATHTHREAMARER 2
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of REN BB (E (2014 F « &) -
office during the year (2014: Nil).
None of the directors waived their emoluments during B E = NEWIRE E2015F3 A
the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil). 31 B IFEE (20144 - &) 7 Fl2 -
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

EEREREEEZ2ME (&)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEESHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the FA FAEEBREESTMHALTBEBREME
highest in the Group during the year include two (2014F - MB)ES - AFHFHME XU LD
directors (2014: two) whose emoluments are reflected in IR - BN TATZHME0T -

the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable
to the remaining individuals are as follows:

2015 2014
HK$’°000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Basic salaries, housing allowances, ¥ - (EFEER -
other allowances and benefits-in-kind ~ E #3285 & E ¥ FI28 3,099 2,750
Share options and share award BB AR I AR 1 22D 20 58
Contributions to pension plans RRBET B 35 26
3,154 2,834
The emoluments fell within the following bands: P& PrEARI T
2015 2014
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 87T = 2,000,000
AT 2 1
3 3
(c) Senior management’s emoluments by brand (c) RARNBIZEREEEMS
Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the Listing Rules, BIE EmRASFAEEBASE S RE
the senior management's emoluments fell within the BEZMEMBAERNNT :
following bands:
2015 2014
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 3 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 &7 2,000,000
BT 2 1
5 3
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11.

12.

FINANCE COSTS, NET
MBEM FE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Finance income B RS URA
__Interestincome from deposits  — FHZALMA 212 249
Finance costs B 75 E A
— Interest on bank borrowings — RITEEZFE (689) (576)
— Interest on obligation under finance — BEEEAEZFE
lease (12) (5)
(701) (581)
Finance costs, net B ER - FE (489) (332)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Frig®ipx<

The amount of income tax expense charged to the

consolidated income statement represents:

BEEWaR MR IERAX SRS

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current income tax BNERFF1S

— Hong Kong profits tax — BEAEMNEH = —
— PRC corporate income tax — PR EEH 445 530

— (Over)/ under-provision in respect — BEFE(BERE)
of prior year BB R (1,492) 1,906
(1,047) 2,436
Deferred income tax (Note 20) RIEFTIS L (H77E20) 3,462 11,466
2,415 13,902

Taxation has been provided at the appropriate rates
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. Hong
Kong profits tax has not been provided for as the Group has
no assessable profit for the years ended 31 March 2014 and

2015.
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12.

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
FRGBimM< ()

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated

R AT TS T AN B9 18 2 T T8 B A i
FARER m?’FUZﬁJUTE?i’JTR+?r§ZI§m
Bz

entities as follows:

2015 2014
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss before income tax R PSR ES 18 (85,985) (216,070)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REBEERERNENZ
applicable to profits in the respective TR ERFE 2
countries HiE (13,186) (45,654)
Income not subject to tax AR 2 WA (2,522) (969)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes A~ A HEFEIE 2 FIs2 250 6,733
Deductible temporary differences not RERAT BN R ERE
recognised 3,402 1,303
Tax losses not recognised I MR R 2 BIE B 18 10,129 49,084
Reversal of deferred tax assets BT IE & E R D 5,834 —
(Over)/under-provision in respect of B FE (BERE)
prior year BETR (1,492) 1,906
Withholding tax SR = 1,499
Tax charge IS 2,415 13,902

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 15% (2014:
21%) for the year. The decrease is caused by a change in
the distribution of profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the respective countries.

There is no tax charge relating to components of other
comprehensive income for the year (2014: Nil).

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
AATERFEABGER

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of HK$117,907,000 (2014: HK$66,040,000).
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AKFEEFZMEFHERHEE15% (2014
F:21%) c BRI TIHRAEEWE R 7
REBERRZ BRI DM BT BT -

AREZIWEBRHEAM 2 EUREARE D 2 T
HX (20145 : &) -

RARNBRERREBEZANREREA
A FE{5E18 /& 117,907,000 5 7T (2014 4F
66,040,000 7T) °
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14. LOSS PER SHARE
BRER

15.

(a)

Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

(a)

&
G ARSIR TR A TR 2 A JEAS
1R DA B 9T AL 2 IR 9 2
HE

2015 2014
Loss attributable to equity holders of AN REZIFA ARG
the Company (HK$’000) EB(FET) (87,420) (227,851)
Weighted average number of ordinary 2317 EEM 2
shares in issue (°000) MHEFIHE (TA) 623,560 623,560
Loss per share attributable to equity ~ ARNRQ RIS HE AJEML
holders of the Company (HK cent per GH&REE (& ENM)
share) (14.02) (36.54)
(b) Diluted (b) #%
Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per B F AN EEE M ERE - WHE2014
share for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015 as FR20156F3A31 HILFE 2 GREEE
there were no dilutive share options for the years. BHEGRAKREEMER -
DIVIDEND
BE

The Board has recommended not to declare dividend for the

year

ended 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil).
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a) Group (a) &T&KE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
improve- and
Land and ments Motor equipment  Computer
buildings ~ HEWE  vehicles > equipment Total
THREF %8 RE RERRE BERE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET TET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4 810
Cost A 40,792 103,453 5,986 18,775 17,537 186,543
Accumulated depreciation and ZHNERAE
impairment (13786)  (88,236)  (5562)  (15:884)  (11,011)  (134,479)
Net book amount REFE 27,006 15,217 424 2,891 6,526 52,064
Year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2014F3A31H
LEE
Opening net book amount HBOEAFE 27,006 15,217 424 2,891 6,526 52,064
Exchange differences ERES — 25 1 10 15 51
Additions NE - 20,248 451 162 670 21,531
Transfer to investment properties ERERENE (2,626) — - — - (2,626)
Disposals e - (120) (19) (299) (575) (1,013)
Depreciation ik (779)  (23,060) (324) (1,613) (2,554)  (28,330)
Impairment A - (1,291) - - - (1,291)
Closing net book amount R EE 23,601 11,019 533 1,151 4,082 40,386
At 31 March 2014 R201453R831 8
Cost R 36,443 114,82 5,643 17,353 16,748 190,469
Accumulated depreciation and ZHNERAE
impairment (12,842)  (103,263)  (5110)  (16202)  (12,666)  (150,083)
Net book amount REFE 23,601 11,019 533 1,151 4,082 40,386
Year ended 31 March 2015 BZ201563R318
LEE
Opening net book amount BOREmFE 23,601 11,019 533 1,151 4,082 40,386
Exchange differences ERES - W) 1) 1 3 )
Additions nE - 16,400 - 400 506 17,306
Transfer to investment properties BRERANE (1,202) - - - - (1,202)
Transfer to assets held for sale ERERBEREEE
(Note 25) (Hi2s) (1,219) - - - - (1,219)
Disposals & (1,464) (57) — (13) 3) (1,537)
Depreciation e (685)  (15,102) (214) (585)  (1,504)  (18,090)
Impairment HE - (698) - - - (698)
Closing net book amount HEEFE 19,031 11,555 318 954 3,084 34,942
At 31 March 2015 R201563A831 0
Cost A 29,782 68,442 5,642 17,092 17,543 138,501
Accumulated depreciation and Rt ERAME
impairment (10751)  (56,887)  (5324)  (16,138)  (14459)  (103,559)
Net book amount EmFE 19,031 11,555 318 954 3,084 34,942
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
M- BERREE)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Group (Continued)

Impairment loss arises from the recoverable amount of
the leasehold improvement is lower than the carrying
amount. The recoverable amount has been determined
based on value-in-use calculation, which involves
estimating the future cash inflows and outflows to be
derived from continuing use of the asset and applying
the appropriate discount rate of those future cash flows.

Bank borrowing are secured on land and building for
the value of HK$19,031,000 (2014: HK$23,601,000).

Company

(a) Z&E(#E)

REEYEEE R E SRR REENE
HERERE - AT EI 2B VIREE B EE
BHAEE  ERSREHEEREEM
EEZREBRSRA LR AREAZER
KREREZBERREK -

R 17 2 & LA (B 819,031,000 £(2014
F :23,601,000/8 70 ) 2 £ i R F B4
R

(b) AAH

Motor vehicle

RE
2015 2014
HK$°’000 HK$°000
FET FET
At the beginning and end of the REDRFL

year
Cost %N 1,580 1,580
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (1,580) (1,580)
Net book amount REFE — —

Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment has been charged to the consolidated
income statement as follows:

(c) BEEFSUBERNKRZEEENE  BEK
REBETEMOT

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Selling and distribution costs SHE R AR 15,452 23,768
Administrative expenses THER 2,638 4,562
18,090 28,330
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
M- BERREE)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment held under finance
lease

Motor vehicles include the following amounts of which

(d) BEEERTZUE BERRHE

MEBRUATASEREREREREAEA

the Group is a lessee under a finance lease: ZERE
2015 2014
HK$’°000 HK$°000
FET FAET

Cost — capitalised finance lease A — BAREZ

MEMHE 451 451
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (179) (66)
272 385

The Group leased a motor vehicle under non-
cancellable finance lease agreement. The lease term is
4 years and ownership of the asset lies with the Group.
Land and building

The Group’s interests in land and building in Hong Kong
are held on leases of between 10 to 50 years.
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AEBERBENAIMEZRERERZEER
B MMA4F  MEEMAREASEEMN
ﬁ o

(e) TiR#EF

AEFBEEB T RIEFZERZTINI0E
50 F 2 HHFE -

Annual Report 2014/2015
2014/2015 FF 3k



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP

REWE — F&H
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At the beginning of the year RELD
Cost BCA 4,157 1,531
Accumulated depreciation BEE (578) (518)
Net book amount BRENFE 3,579 1,013
During the year FR
Opening net book amount HWRREDEE 3,579 1,013
Transfer from property, plant and ERBAME  BFE
equipment K& 1,202 2,626
Depreciation e (154) (60)
Disposals HE (824) —
Transfer to assets held for sale ERERSEIEHEEEE
(Note 25) (K15t 25) (3,803) —
Closing net book amount HRAR AR DA = 3,579
At the end of the year REHE
Cost [B#N — 4,157
Accumulated depreciation 2:E = (578)
Net book amount SRMFAE = 3,579

The fair value of investment properties was HK$17,140,000
as at 31 March 2014. The valuations were performed by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional
valuer. The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market or similar investment properties.

The Group’s interests in investment properties are held in
Hong Kong with leases up to 2047.

Depreciation of the Group’s investment properties have been
charged to the administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Bank borrowings were secured on the investment properties
for the value of HK$3,579,000 as at 31 March 2014.
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP

BYEE — &A5H

Licence Computer
Trademark fees software Total
BE RBHERE EiEE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2013 M2013%F4H81H
Cost %N 69,566 318 17,743 87,627
Accumulated amortisation and RFHEE NORE
impairment (31,652) (818) (10,318) (42,288)
Net book amount BREFE 37,914 — 7,425 45,339
Year ended 31 March 2014 HZE2014%F
3A31BLEE
Opening net book amount YR E FE 37,914 — 7,425 45,339
Exchange differences EHZER — — 10 10
Additions NE — — 119 119
Amortisation e (2,446) — (2,949) (5,395)
Impairment pERIE! (35,468) — — (35,468)
Closing net book amount B IR ENFE — — 4,605 4,605
At 31 March 2014 MR2014%3HA31H
Cost BN 69,566 318 17,837 87,721
Accumulated amortisation and ZEtHE i ORI E
impairment (69,566) (318)  (13,232)  (83,116)
Net book amount BREFE — — 4,605 4,605
Year ended 31 March 2015 HZE2015%F
3A31HIEEE
Opening net book amount BYIAREFE — — 4,605 4,605
Exchange differences EHER — — 2 2
Additions NE —_ — 332 332
Amortisation 5y — — (2,369) (2,369)
Closing net book amount B4R BREFE — — 2,570 2,570
At 31 March 2015 MA2015F3A31H
Cost AR 69,566 318 18,157 88,041
Accumulated amortisation and ZEHEEE RORE
impairment (69,566) (318) (15,587) (85,471)
Net book amount BREFE — — 2,570 2,570
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18

19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP (Continued)
BLEE — AKE(#)

Amortisation of the Group’s intangible assets has been
charged to the consolidated income statement as follows:

B S A K R ING 2 A S B 4 A
m -

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FETL

Selling and distribution costs THE Ko AR 400 390
Administrative expenses 1THEA 1,969 5,005
2,369 5,395

For the purpose of impairment review, the recoverable
amount of trademark is based on fair value less cost to sell
calculations. The valuation of the trademark is determined by
estimating the value of royalties which the Group is exempted
from by virtue of the fact that it owns the trademark. During
the year ended 31 March 2014, the key assumptions used in

PURERFME - EE2 ke S B IRE
A EREERAFE - MEZGETER
BT ARERBEZREMEREEMN 25
HHEBEEMET - REZE2014F3 A 31
HIEFE  BERZHEEZEZRENT

the valuation of the trademark are as follows:

Net sales royalty rate FHERTTERLL X 3%
Discount rate ALIR & 13.5%
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY
RMBARZERE — A
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current FERE
Unlisted equity investments, at cost FEETRAIRE « KA 10,000 10,000
Less: Provision for impairment (Note a) & - F{EE & (Hita) (10,000) (10,000)
Net carrying amount REDFEE — —
Capital in nature contribution (Note b) BERELE(HiEb) 559,045 559,045
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note ¢)  FEUWFHIB A RFIE(Hitc) 72,136 76,601
Less: Provision for impairment (Note o) & - W{EREE (H1:td) (164,297) (51,500)
466,884 584,146
Current E
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note e)  JEUWE A RIFIA(Hite) 2,167 2,368

Walker Group Holdings Limited
BEESETKRBER QA

88



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

19.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY (Continued)
REBAR 2 EE — RNQF(H)

Notes:

(a)

(d)

(e)

®

Movements in the provision for impairment of unlisted equity
investments are as follows:

Hat

(a) ZELMRAKREZRERBEEISNT

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

At the beginning of the year &) 10,000 —
Recognition of impairment loss ERREEE = 10,000
At the end of the year REL 10,000 10,000

The amounts due from subsidiaries are treated as capital in
nature contributions to subsidiaries.

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free
and not repayable within twelve months.

Movements in the provision for impairment of capital in nature

(b) FEMHKTE A RIFIABRIERAMBARELZ

AREHERE -

() MUK EBARFENEER REREA

R12@AREE -

(d) BEARELE R EWRH B AR RIEZRESE

contribution and amounts due from subsidiaries are as follows: HEEWT -
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FEIT
At the beginning of the year REH 51,500 —
Recognition of impairment loss BRBERE 112,797 51,500
At the end of the year RER 164,297 51,500

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest
free and has no fixed terms of repayment. This amount
approximates its fair value.

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group are set out in Note
34.
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20. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP
ELEREH — A%H

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEERELERBEEGEZHTAT -

is as follows:
2015 2014
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHET TET
Deferred income tax assets EIEFTSIREE 6,091 9,547
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFSHAE (5,990) (5,989)
101 3,558
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is BIEPASHIRIA R FHIAT -
as follows:
2015 2014
HK$°’000 HK$°000
FET FET
At the beginning of the year REA 3,558 14,899
Exchange differences fEHZ% 5 125
Charged to the consolidated income ERERE IR T R
statement (Note 12) (it 12) (3,462) (11,466)
At the end of the year RFL 101 3,558

FANTRA-—HEREEEGEH 2 HER
HBEEMBSREERABEZESOT

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as

follows:
Deferred income tax assets: BLEAMSHEE :
Provisions Tax losses Total
B BMIEEE st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000
T T FET
As at 1 April 2013 R2013%F481H 10,196 9,159 19,355
Exchange differences PE 3 =% (7) 130 123
Charged to the consolidated BERERE W E TR 0k
income statement (642) (9,289) (9,931)
As at 31 March 2014 M2014F3 A31H 9,547 — 9,547
Exchange differences EHER 6 — 6
Charged to the consolidated BETAGRE R E K
income statement (3,462) — (3,462)
As at 31 March 2015 7201563 431 H 6,091 — 6,091

Walker Group Holdings Limited
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20.

21.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (Continued)
LRSS — XK@ (#)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxation profits is probable.

The Group has unrecognised tax losses and unrecognised
temporary differences of approximately HK$533,641,000
(2014: HK$419,612,000) to carry forward against future
taxable income. These tax losses are subject to approval by
Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department and the PRC tax
authority respectively, approximately HK297,034,000 (2014:
HK$189,751,000) of unrecognised tax losses have no expiry
date and the remaining loss of HK$122,846,000 (2014:
HK$149,824,000) will expire in 5 years.

EREFTS I E B ) R EAERA I 75 Al e Al 8 58
R SR e RR e M) B 3R T A P AS 88 2 R IR B 1R
TERER -

REE 7 R ERTTEE B KRR AT
R = KA 49 4 533,641,0008 70 (2014 4F ¢
419,612,000/ 7T ) + A 45 82 1R K 2R JE &R
A - ZEBBEBEARSEERER R
PR E B2 E - 49297,034,000 7% T
(2014 4F : 189,751,000/ 7T) 2 KFERF A
BEAHREREE - T 122,846,00057C
(20144 : 149,824,000/870) 2 BB 5
FREM °

Deferred income tax liabilities: EEFMSHEE
Withholding
tax on
dividend for
undistributed Tax
profits depreciation
R 5 KR F allowance Total
BREFENH BETERHRE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT FET
As at 1 April 2013 R2013F481H 4,234 222 4,456
Exchange difference PE 5 =% 2 — (2)
Charged to the consolidated T R4RA WZER P IR
income statement 1,499 36 1,535
As at 31 March 2014 R2014F3A31H 5,731 258 5,989
Exchange difference EHZER 1 — 1
As at 31 March 2015 7201543 A31 8 5,732 258 5,990

INVENTORIES - GROUP
FE — ~&H

Inventories represent merchandising stock.
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included

in cost of sales during the year amounted to HK$468,628,000
(2014: HK$524,488,000).
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22,

TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP
BREZHRE — FA5H

Retail sales are in cash, by credit cards or collected by
department stores on behalf of the Group. The department
stores normally settle the proceeds to the Group within 2
months from the date of sales.

Wholesales are generally on credit terms ranging from 0 to
30 days.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice date at the
statement of financial position date is as follows:

TEHEEUES EAFRIHBEERAMN
KASEBBREXINE - BEAR KR
HE AR 2 @A NRAEBEEEREK
I o

HEZEEH RN FOEI0H -

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

0 — 30 days 0—30H 75,009 79,446
31 — 60 days 31 —60H 24,833 21,262
61 — 90 days 61 —90H 2,787 2,002
Over 90 days 90 HM k 12,395 16,926
115,024 119,636

As of 31 March 2015, trade receivables of HK$39,104,000
(2014: HK$39,222,000) were past due. These relate to a
number of independent customers and department stores for
whom there is no recent history of default. No impairment
provision has been made for both years. The ageing analysis
of these trade receivables is as follows:

M2015F3H31H B UK & 5 X 1A
39,104,000 7% JT(2014 4 : 39,222,000/% 7T )
B iR - R EE S AW TR LR
BUBEPMBERREH - WEEMEFE
ETIRREEE - LERKE HRIBEZRRD
T

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

1 — 30 days 0—30H 24,003 20,300
31 — 60 days 31 —60H 2,836 2,002
61 — 90 days 61 —90H 2,568 2,622
Over 90 days 90 HI k 9,697 14,298
39,104 39,222

Walker Group Holdings Limited
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22,

23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP (Continued)
EHREZRE — AKE#)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

REBERWE 5508 2 REERA N ERET

denominated in the following currencies: 8
2015 2014
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHET TET
Hong Kong dollar BT 897 1,288
Renminbi AR 112,650 116,435
New Taiwan dollar e 1,477 1,913
115,024 119,636

The carrying amount of trade receivables approximates its
fair value.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2% BAREREMERKEA

JEWE S8 2 FREERE A FERS -

7R B3 s A ) R R

Group Company
rEH AN
2015 2014 2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET 8T FET TET

Deposits e 40,748 45,578 — —
Prepayments SN 2,832 5,813 214 186
Other receivables H iU sRI8 837 1,413 — —
Value-added tax recoverable A Y B B R 6,622 12,020 — —

51,039 64,824 214 186

Less: Long-term rental deposits i - REFFA S XS

(10,995)  (14,781) — —

40,044 50,043 214 186

Denominated in: BT EREGHE
Hong Kong dollar BT 32,115 36,263 214 186
Renminbi AR 18,642 28,339 — —
New Taiwan dollar e 278 216 — —
Others Efb 4 6 — —
51,039 64,824 214 186

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables approximate their fair values. The Group does
not hold any security. The above receivables do not contain
impaired assets.
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

HeRESEEER
Group Company
AEE NN
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$°’000 HK$’000 HK$°’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET TFET
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFHEES 94,939 107,044 596 529
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEER 94,939 107,044 596 529
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial R BARRAK A RE RIRSFBEIEB KA
position are denominated in the following currencies: TE¥EE
Group Company
TEE b NN
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET TFET
Hong Kong dollar BT 14,185 42,280 571 504
Renminbi AR 78,034 59,184 — —
United States dollar ETT 1,379 3,136 25 25
Others HAh 1,341 2,444 — —
94,939 107,044 596 529
The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in REENUAREHE 2R RIRTTERTFR
Renminbi are placed with banks in the PRC. The conversion R RIT o LFEUARBEZERE
of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign #AINE BB SR BT ET R 2 SMEE HI
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign RBIRATE °
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
25. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE - GROUP
HEELERE — AEH
2015 2014
HK$°’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Properties, plant and equipment (Note 16) ¥)% « W= L&k (f1:F 16) 1,219 —
Investment properties (Note 17) WEMEHE17) 3,803 —
5,022 —
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25.

26.

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE - GROUP (Continued)
REFLEEE — AEE#)

Certain properties located in Hong Kong previously classified
as properties, plant and equipment and investment properties
of HK$1,219,000 and HK$3,803,000 respectively are
presented as assets held for sale following the approval
of the Group’s management to locate the buyers for these
properties on 22 December 2014. The transactions are
expected to be completed within 12 months.

The fair value of assets held for sale are HK$26,660,000
as at 31 March 2015. The valuations are performed by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional
valuer. The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market or similar assets held for sale.

Bank borrowings are secured on the assets held for sale for
the value of HK$5,022,000.

On 4 February 2015, Senet International Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a provisional
sales and purchase agreement for sales of its property
for a consideration of HK$5,630,000. The transaction was
subsequently completed on 30 April 2015.

On 9 April 2015, Trunari Enterprises Company Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a provisional sales and purchase agreement for sales
of its property for a consideration of HK$7,130,000. The
transaction was subsequently completed on 8 June 2015.

SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM - GROUP AND
COMPANY
BARGBE — ARERADT

KAREBEEENR2014F 12 S22 L&
RZEVEYVEBERE KR ESERY
¥ BEMREBEREEMEZETAURES
ZE 5 511,219,000 % T % 3,803,000 /5
T2 ARFEIELEEE - 25X ZTEHE
P12 @B AFER °

MN2015F 3831 H BEEHEEEZ A
F{& £26,660,0008 7T o {HEMBILEHE
HEMBERITERARETT - AFEZR
ERBANERMIS ZEAERIIFEEL
EZHEUEE -

IRITEEIFEIEIHE EE5,022,0005 T
{EHEIR -

R20156F2H48  ARFIZE2EWNBR
AREEBEER ARG LB KT EEHHEMN
HEEYE - K(E/45,630,0008 7T ° 28
R5HHE%EKR 201594 30 BHEK ©

R2015F 4 A9H KRR z2EMB R
RIEITBCEBAR AR LE KT EE NS
WHEEYE - R{EA7,130,0008 T ° 7%
B ZEZN2015%F6 A8 H®THK °

Nominal
Number of value of
ordinary ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
EEBR¥EA LEREE RIEE @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
Authorised EE
At 31 March 2014 and 2015 720145201563 A 31 H 9,000,000,000 900,000 — 900,000
Issued and fully paid BRITRAR
At 31 March 2014 and 2015 R2014F 2201553 A 31 H 623,560,000 62,356 562,600 624,956
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26.

SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM - GROUP AND
COMPANY (Continued)
BRAERGE — XEERADQTF(E)

Share options:

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO share option scheme
in May 2007 (“Pre-IPO Scheme”). On 21 May 2007, share
options were granted to directors and to selected employees
under the Pre-IPO Scheme.

A share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the shareholders’ written resolution of the
Company dated 21 May 2007. On 5 August 2009, share
options were granted to directors and to selected employees
under the Share Option Scheme.

The subscription price determined by the board shall be
at least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
on the grant date, which must be a business day; (b) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the grant date; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares. Options are conditional on the employee
completing 1 to 5 year’s service (the vesting period). The
options are exercisable starting 1 to 3 years from the listing
date. The Company has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

B

RN 2007 F5 A RME X AFHESRAT
BRETE(ERABERATE D - ©
20075 A21 8 BEREDRESXAH
ERAFEETEZRATEES -

EREAES(ERESE DERERAT
BHEIA2007F5 A21 HZBHEEMRFER
FEBEM - 200948 A5H & B TY
RIEERETEIR TES RATBIES -

HEFSETLRABRELARI RATEA
ZEEE ¢ (a) ROV IEH AR (BARE?
BORBRERBRERMBILHE : (b)
Pt i BRI B AT 6 {2 3¢ BB AT
BEBMEBRARZFHETE  M(c)Bi
ZHE - BREAFREE TR E5FRE
®B(FBH)TAMEE - BRERIR EHEH
FEET 1 EIFRITE - ARAWLEETE K
EEENRE BRI ERBRE -

R AT 2 BRI B 2 S8 T S AR BB A0
FEITEEMT :

Average

exercise

price in
Hong Kong Options
dollar per share (’000)
BRERGZ B e
BT FIITEE (F14)
At 1 April 2013 M2013F4 A1 H 0.93 23,560
Forfeited B84 0.60 (1,300)
Expired [REIE:E 3.09 (3,080)
At 31 March 2014 MR 201463 H31H 0.60 19,180
Forfeited BoR Uk 0.60 (160)
At 31 March 2015 M201543 A31H 0.60 19,020
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26. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM — GROUP AND
COMPANY (Continued)
BRAERGE — A2EBREAR(Z)

Share options: (Continued)

Share options outstanding (in thousands) at the end of
the year have the following vesting date, expiry date and

exercise price:

BRE: (E)

RELBARITEZBRE(TH)ZEER
B Eim B RITEENT

Exercise
price in
Hong Kong Number of share options (’000)
Vesting date Expiry date dollar per share outstanding at 31 March
=8B &% B BRERGZ R3A3 BERITHEZ
BITITEE BRERE (T0)
2015 2014
5 August 2010 4 August 2017 0.60 3,340 3,340
201048 A5H 201768 H4H
5 August 2011 4 August 2017 0.60 3,920 3,960
201148 A5H 201748 A4 H
5 August 2012 4 August 2017 0.60 3,920 3,960
201248 A5H 2017468 H4H
5 August 2013 4 August 2017 0.60 3,920 3,960
201348 A5H 201748 A4 H
5 August 2014 4 August 2017 0.60 3,920 3,960
201448 A5H 201748 H4H
19,020 19,180

Share option expenses charged to the consolidated income
statement are based on valuation determined using binomial
lattice model. Share options granted were valued based on

the following assumptions:

SRR AW ER R Z BB AR S 0 g — IR
MEXEE 2 HEFE - CROBREZGE
BIVRE TIIRR

Share
price at
the date Annual Life of Dividend
of grant Exercisable Expected risk-free option yield
Date of grant Option value RAH price volatility interest B FTERER
REAH BREEE 2RO ER TEEE AHRE SFEERRNE TEAFH ZBRE
5 August 2009 0.2689-0.3083 0.57 0.60 66.368% 2.344% 8 years 2.59%
200968 A5H 8%

Expected volatility of the Group’s share price was based on
the historical volatility of the share as at the date of grant.

AREBRE 2 AR ERERORE LA
W BELRIBMETE

Total share option expense of HK$86,000 (2014:
HK$371,000) was recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

B8 I 7 B X 42 %886,00078 J0(2014 4F -
371,000 870 ) N e A Wz R IER -
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26.

SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM — GROUP AND
COMPANY (Continued)
BRAERGE — AEERERF(E)

Share award:

For the purpose of the Company’s initial public offering in
June 2007, the controlling shareholder of the Company
and immediate holding company of the Group, Smart
Presto Holdings Limited (“Smart Presto”) had granted
1,235,000 shares from its own shareholding to a director and
employees where the grantees had paid HK$1.00 by way of
consideration before the listing in order to provide reward
to the director and employees who have contributed to the
Group’s business development.

The shares granted as aforesaid represent approximately
0.20% of the Company’s total issued share capital
immediately after the date of Listing.

A Share Purchase Scheme was adopted by Smart Presto in
August 2009. Smart Presto established a scheme to provide
for the grant of options to purchase shares beneficially owned
by Smart Presto to certain employees, officers, consultants,
including any Executive or Non-executive Directors, of any
member of the Group who in the opinion of the Remuneration
Committee have contributed or will contribute to the
achievement of the economic objectives of the Group.

Options to purchase a total of 10,000,000 shares, representing
approximately 1.6% of the Company’s total issued share
capital immediately after the date of grant, at the exercise
price of HK$0.6 per share were granted under the share
purchase scheme.

The Company is required to recognise the value of
the above-mentioned shares as a non-cash employee
benefit expense on a straight-line basis over the relevant
vesting period. Total share expense of HK$28,000
(2014: HK$119,000) was recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 March 2015.
A corresponding amount was credited as share based
compensation reserve under equity in the financial
statements of the Company.

Walker Group Holdings Limited
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27. RESERVES

f#%E
(a) Group (a) &=&KE
Share-
Available- based
Merger  Statutory Foreign for-sale compen-
reserve  reserves  currency  investment saion  Accumu-
(Note i) (Note ii)  translation reserves reserve lated
AftRE  EERE  reseve  AHEE K losses Total
(Wi (Weti) HERRGRE  RERE  BERE  ZIER &t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TET TET AT AT TET TET FET
Balance at 1 April 2013 R2013F 4 R1B &8 22,002 24,004 56,034 545 28,907 (73,138) 58,354
Fair value losses on MELESREARL
available-for-sale NTEBE
financial assets - - — (408) — - (408)
Fair value release on HEMHEESRHEER
disposal of available-for- @7 ATE
sale financial assets - - - (137) — - (137)
Currency translation EXER
differences — — 1,157 — — — 1,157
Loss for the year rEEFE - - - - —  (227851)  (227,851)
Transfer g - (50) - - - 50 -
Share option scheme —  ERERE — EEMRK
value of employee (EfE(Hr226)
services (Note 26) - - - - 37 - 3N
Share award (Note 26) RiNRE (Mt 26) - - - - 119 — 19
Balance at 31 March 2014 20143 131 A2 &8 22,002 23,054 57,191 - 29397 (300939)  (168,395)
Currency translation EREE
differences - - (1,765) - - - (1,765)
Loss for the year TEEFR - - - = - (87420)  (87420)
Share option scheme —  ERIERE] — EEMRK
value of employee E&(Ar126)
services (Note 26) - - - - 86 - 86
Share award (Note 26) Wi RE (At 26) - - - - 2 - 2
Balance at 31 March 2015 7201543 431 B2 &8 22,002 23,954 55,426 - 29511  (388,359)  (257,466)
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27. RESERVES (Continued)
#iE &)
(a) Group (Continued) (a) F&KHE

Notes: Mt -

(i) The merger reserve of the Group represents the 0) $%é}i§f§1ﬁ?§$@ﬁjﬁ%§ﬁﬂ§i
difference between the nominal amount of the share fﬁ{éﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁ&@ﬁ?ﬂﬁ@imﬁ
capital issued by the Company and the nominal amount T‘Ii%ﬂﬁ'ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%¢@izwgﬁﬂ
of the share capital of the subsidiaries transferred to the BAmEZER -

Company in connection with the reorganisation for the
listing of the shares of the Company.

(i) Companies which are established in the PRC are (ii) FC?EXIZ’/}?ZEE/\\TE%?}_@%
required to make appropriations to certain statutory Eﬂéﬁﬁéﬂﬂ?@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ/\f’ﬁﬂj@
reserves from profit for the year after offsetting %‘Jfﬁ?ﬁ@ : fﬁﬁiggi@@%#é
accumulated losses from prior years and before profit TORERE Tﬁ%ﬂ?ﬁ?%{f&fﬁﬁ:{%
distribution to equity holders. The percentages to §Z§§7\tt7ﬁ?§¢ *El@?ﬁfﬁ%%ﬁz
be appropriated to such statutory reserve funds are ﬁ%@@ﬁﬁ%%@@’%%? O,%%}%
determined according to the relevant regulations in the Eiﬁﬁﬁgﬁ\fﬁﬁf'ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂgﬂﬁ; 1%
PRC or at the discretion of the board of the respective AR - KAERFFHIFEAKIER 2
companies. Such statutory reserves can only be used K®BER - %j?jémfﬁﬁﬁz:ﬁﬁﬁ
to offset accumulated losses, to increase capital, or for FTARRFZERTEA °
special bonus or collective welfare of employees. These
statutory reserves cannot be distributed to equity holders
of the Company.

(b) Company (b) &ATF

Share-based

Accumulated compensation

losses reserve Total
ZHER BB ERE #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2013 7201344 A1 8 (2,283) 28,907 26,624
Loss for the year AREEZEE (66,040) — (66,040)
Share option scheme HEAR AT —
— value of employee EERBEEB
services (Note 26) (Ht5+26) — 371 371
Share award (Note 26) R 1p 888 (ff:£26) — 119 119
At 31 March 2014 201443 A 31 H (68,323) 29,397 (38,926)
Loss for the year REEFBE (117,907) — (117,907)
Share option scheme FEIRIEST S —
— value of employee E ERRTSEE
services (Note 26) (K1t 26) — 86 86
Share award (Note 26)  BiD88E (K7t 26) — 28 28
At 31 March 2015 7201543 B 31 H (186,230) 29,511 (156,719)
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28.

OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE - GROUP

RAEEAR — AEH

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$000
FET TET
Gross finance lease liabilities %ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%%fi@%ﬂ
— minimum lease payments: — SEEE
Within one year —FR 118 118
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEERF(BREEREME) 128 246
246 364
Less: Future finance charges i RRMEER (25) (37)
Present value of obligation under A EAERE
finance lease 221 327
The present value of finance lease RMEHESEREBENT
liabilities is as follows:
Within one year —&FR 106 106
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFLF(BREEMSF) 115 221
Present value of obligation under BEMEAERE
finance lease 221 327

The weighted average effective interest rates per annum of
the Group’s obligation under finance lease was 2.5% (2014:

2.5%).

Interest rates are fixed at contract date. The lease was on a
fixed repayment basis. The Group’s obligation under finance
lease is secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased
asset. The carrying amount of the obligation under finance

lease approximates its fair value and is denominated in Hong

Kong dollars.

RERE T EREFAEY IIETFHEREF
R E2.5% (20144 © 2.5%) °

MERAHBRETE - HORBEEEREE
R AREMEREAEALEAZE
SEEFEER MEBEAEZREERE
NFERE - WABTTEE -
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29. TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
ENEZRE - B BARAMENRKE

Group Company
AEE QT
2015 2014 2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TET FET TET

Trade payables JERTE S 5RIE 101,396 128,095 — —
Accruals and other payables Rt E R R EMmESFRIE 53,193 71,854 1,624 1,199
154,589 199,949 1,624 1,199
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: ENESHIBEZREITAT -
2015 2014
HK$°’000 HK$°000
FET TFET
0 — 30 days 0—30H 91,290 113,430
31 — 60 days 31 —60H 1,283 1,831
61 — 90 days 61 —90H 326 3,392
Over 90 days 90 BIA 8,497 9,442
101,396 128,095
The amounts are repayable according to normal trade terms ZEDER—RESIERERRLE HEE
from 30 to 90 days from date of issuance. 30E 90 HEE -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s trade ZS%@&Z’XQE?Z@ﬁ%%?WE(;E?%ﬁH
payables, accruals and other payables are denominated in the R A FE AR 2 BREME R A T B EHE -
following currencies:
Group Company
rEE AN
2015 2014 2015 2014

HK$000  HK$'000 = HK$'000  HK$000
FAET T FET TET

Hong Kong dollar BT 31,802 32,102 1,624 1,199
Renminbi AR 120,658 166,195 — —
New Taiwan dollar ek 1,836 1,652 = —
Others Hib 293 — — —

154,589 199,949 1,624 1,199

Walker Group Holdings Limited
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30. BORROWINGS — GROUP

BE — RxEE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET FET
Short-term bank loan — secured WMHERITEE — HIEH 25,040 5,260

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

AEBEZBEZRHRERATERE

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Hong Kong dollar BT 20,000 —
New Taiwan dollar e 5,040 5,260
25,040 5,260

The bank loans are repayable in range of 30 days to 90 days
from the date of issuance.

At 31 March 2015, a bank loan of HK$5,040,000 (2014:
HK$5,260,000) is interest bearing at a fixed rate of 2.75%
and secured by the Group’s standby letter of credit
amounting to US$1 million, a promissory note of New
Taiwan dollar 28 million co-made by the Group and the non-
controlling shareholder.

At 31 March 2015, a bank loan of HK$20,000,000 (2014: Nil)
is interest bearing at Hong Kong Inter Bank of floating rate
plus 2% per annum and secured by the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and assets held for sale (Notes 16 and
25).

The fair value of the bank loan equals its carrying amount,

as the impact of discounting is not significant due to its short
maturity.
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31. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER
(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash RSB ASERESEERTAZ
used in operations ez Bk
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss before income tax RETFTIS TR ES 18 (85,985) (216,070)
Adjustments for: EEH TR
— Depreciation of property, plant — U BEREEZ
and equipment e 18,090 28,330
— Depreciation of investment — WEWMEZINE
properties 154 60
— Impairment of property, plant and — 1% - BER&ZHE 2
equipment VERIEN 698 1,291
— Amortisation of intangible assets =~ — ZEFEE 7 #iH 2,369 5,395
— Impairment of intangible assets — BIEEEZRE — 35,468
— (Gain)/ loss on disposal of — HEWE - BER
property, plant and equipment HiEz (W), ke (5,925) 749
— Gain on disposal of investment — HEREME 2 s
properties (2,946) —
— Gain on fair value release on — HEAHEEeRERE
disposal of available-for-sale B 2 A ERE
financial assets — (137)
— Loss on disposal of available-for- — HERHHESREE
sale financial assets < [E518 — 30
— Dividend income on available-for- — AItHELREE Y
sale financial assets R EWA = (1,297)
— Interest income — FEUA (212) (249)
— Interest expense — MBERX 701 581
— Share award and option expenses — &) HEE KM BERRAERT X 114 490
Changes in working capital LEESEE)
— Inventories —fFE 78,022 125,205
— Trade receivables — EWE FFKIA 4,631 33,057
— Deposits, prepayments and other — 2%  FERTZHKE L
receivables H e Y GRIA 13,791 5,562
— Trade payables — BB S50R (26,744) (34,049)
— Accruals and other payables — [EFTB RN EAMENRIE (18,627) (1,819)
Cash used in operations KEEBFACRE (21,869) (17,403)
Walker Group Holdings Limited
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31. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)
FRERERERE)

(b)

(c)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment

(b) HENE BERRBZAERE

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds RizEReRERT  LEWE - K
from disposal of property, plant and equipment B Rz TS sRIBEE ¢
comprise:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net book amount (Note 16) BRMEFE(MZ16) 1,537 1,013
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWME - KERE#E 2
plant and equipment (Note 7) Wz (B18) (K 7) 5,925 (749)
Proceeds from disposal of property,  HEWE¥ « WENKREZ
plant and equipment P15 3008 7,462 264

Proceeds from disposal of investment properties

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds

(c) HLEREMEZFM

REFARERERT  HEREME

from disposal of investment properties comprise: ZFSFUARE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net book amount (Note 17) BREFE(MZ17) 824 —
Gain on disposal of investment HEREME 2 Bam
properties (Note 7) (Hat7) 2,946 —
Proceeds from disposal of investment &% &Y%~ FiE KA
properties 3,770 —
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31.

32.

2015 2014
HK$’°000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Land and buildings THRIEF
— No later than 1 year —1FR 69,476 85,290
— Later than 1 year and no later — 1 FRETLZNEF
than 5 years 52,569 40,857
S LYY 126,147
Furniture, fixtures and equipment il - B RERE
— No later than 1 year — 15K 221 194
— Later than 1 year and no later — 1 FRETLZNREF
than 5 years 554 775
775 969
122,820 127,116
Walker Group Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Cont/nued)
Fad IE%/}ILE%(,{%)
(d) Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale (d) HETHHEESMEEZMEBRE
financial assets
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds REEEReRERT  DEUTHDE
from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets TREEZAEHIARSE
comprise:
2015 2014
HK$°’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount SRmEE — 39,351
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEHESREE Y
financial assets (Note 7) B8 (KaE7) = (30)
Proceeds from disposal of HEHEESMEE Y
available-for-sale financial assets FriS k18 — 39,321
COMMITMENTS
iR
(a) Capital commitments (a) EREIE
As at 31 March 2014 and 2015, the Group and the PR2014 4 201563431 H » A%
Company had no capital commitments. & [ 2R &) 5 AR o
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHERIE
The future aggregate minimum lease payments and $ETJ§§E§;§%E MAE - BEERER
turnover rental expenses under non-cancellable i HERZHE TR HELENME

operating leases in respect of retail shops, offices,
warehouses and furniture, fixtures and equipment are
as follows:

fEAE&ZE{Eﬁi‘HﬁH KN R KR
SAEHSERNARIT
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32. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
EEE)

(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued) (b) KEHEREE)
Leases are negotiated for varying terms, escalation HEBSTRER MHMELEHAHBER
clauses and renewal options. The operating lease BHEE - BETFAMzEEHERSTY
rentals of certain outlets are based on the higher of a BIESEREZEEHSRUEEEAE 2
minimum guaranteed rental and a sales level based HE(UESEAE)TE o Lk
rental. The above operating lease commitments include HEREEZEEBERS ZAIE -
commitments for fixed rent only.
In addition, rental payable in some cases include gboh - BN ERLEBRA T BER
additional rent, calculated according to gross revenue, BETHES Z25IINES (RigkzSE%E
in excess of the fixed rent. HE) o
33. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
EXBABALIRS
The Group is controlled by Smart Presto Holdings Limited REBESTHEEEAERE AT (REBER
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) which owns TR ) - R AAT
72.03% of the Company’s shares. The remaining 27.97% of 72.03% A% 15 o EH6427.97% & 15D i &
the shares were widely held. The ultimate controlling party of CHEE o NEFHZ HRER AT AR
the Group is Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung. EEET Ao
During the year, the Group had the following significant RNEFBRERBERRBE A THET Y E
transactions with related parties: AR5
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
Key management compensation FEEHEA SR
Basic salaries, housing allowances, K% - EFEER - HMER R
other allowances and benefits-in-kind EYH = 4,126 4,055
Share options and share award xR RN EE 20 58
Contributions to pension plans BRIREFHEIHK 37 43
4,183 4,156
Note: st -

Key management includes directors and certain senior management
who have important roles in making operational and financial
decisions.
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34. SUBSIDIARIES

MEATR
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 THAER2015F3A31 B Z2EZHER A
March 2015: ES

Place of incorporation and Principal activities and Particulars of issued

Name of company Interest held

kind of legal entity

place of operation

share capital

RAREH AMREHREREREN IEXBREEFREE CRITREFE Pz
2015 2014
Directly held:
EERR:
Genius Earn Investments The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 90 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong US$1 each
BREREBRRAA HBRUESE  ARAR REZR/EE 0 BREE1FTZ
AR
Indirectly held:
BEEs:
Artemis Footwear Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Retailing of footwear in 10,000,000 ordinary 65% 65%
KR IEEBR AR company Taiwan shares
BB ARAF TERE /A8 10,000,000 f& & 7 fix
Ascent Pride Investments The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong 1RMEE R EER
ARBREBRAF RBRUEE  ARAR REER/EE
Asia Glory Investments Hong Kong, limited liability  Investment holding in 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong 1R E &R
ELEREBRRF E® BRRAA REER /BB
Billion International Trading  The PRC, wholly foreign- Retailing of footwear in ~ US$1,000,000 100% 100%
(Shanghai) Company owned enterprise, limited the PRC 1,000,000 37T
Limited" liability company TERE/T
REERES(LE)ARAR HE  IEBEELERRAF
Citiward Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
EMERAA] company Hong Kong 1R E R
E& BRAT REZRR/BE
Excellent High Investments  The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong 1REE1EZT2EBR
ERREBRAA RBRUEE  ARAR REER/BE
Hero Glory Corporation Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Retailing of footwear in 1,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%

Limited company Hong Kong shares
EEFRNT B BRAA TERE/BE 1,000,000 & & A ik
Walker Group Holdings Limited
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34.

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

M AT (&)

Name of company

Place of incorporation and

kind of legal entity

Principal activities and
place of operation

Particulars of issued
share capital

Interest held

RNREMH AMREHRAREREN IEXBREEREE CRITREFE Pz
2015 2014
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE (&)
Main Legend Investment Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong 10,000 iR & @R
BREREBRAA ER ARAA REER/ BB
Senet International Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Holding of trademarks 10 ordinary shares 100% 100%
BaBBRERAF company and property in 10 R ERRK
BB BRRA Hong Kong
BREBERNE/BE
Smart Trend Trading The PRC, wholly foreign- Retailing of footwear in ~ HK$41,000,000 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Company owned enterprise, limited the PRC 41,000,000 87T
Limited" liability company TEEE h
HEEZ(RIDBRAF hE - IMEEECERRAR
Smarter Trading (Beijing) The PRC, wholly foreign- Retailing of footwear in ~ HK$40,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited" owned enterprise, limited the PRC 40,000,000 57T
BEHE S (S R)ERAA liability company TEEE HE
hE B ECRERAA
Surplus Jet Investments The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong US$1
BRERBERRA RBRUEE  ARAA REER/EE 1REEI T2 EBR
Triple Juicy Ltd The United Kingdom, limited Holding of trademarks 1,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
liability company BEBR of £1 each
ZE - ARAA 1,000 iR B AR 1 58
ZE B
Trunari Enterprises Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Holding of trademarks 22,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
Company Limited company and properties shares
EHRERARATA B BRRA in Hong Kong 22,000,000 % & & %
RERERYE/BE
Vervestone Ltd The United Kingdom, limited Investment holding in 2,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
liability company the United Kingdom of £1 each
®E - BRAR RERR,/HE 2,000 AT EI(E 1 585
ZEBR
Walker Corporation Limited  Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Holding of leases in 1,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%

company Hong Kong 1,000 % & 3B A%
EBE BRAT BERE/BH
Annual Report 2014/2015
109 2014/2015 FF 3k




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

34.

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

MEATE (&)

Name of company

Place of incorporation and
kind of legal entity

Principal activities and

place of operation

Particulars of issued

share capital

Interest held

RS AMRLEHREREREN IEXBREEREE CROTREFE Frfs s
2015 2014
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MiEsE (&)
Walker Group China Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Company Limited company Hong Kong 100 fR &A%
BESE(FE)BRLDA B8 BRRAA REER /B
Walker Group International ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Company Limited company Hong Kong 100 B & @ A%
BESEER)BERAR & BRAA RERR /B
Walker International Hong Kong, limited liability = Wholesaling of footwear 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Footwear Limited company frEEy 100 A & @M
BRERREXBRAR EF&  BRAR
Walker Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company Hong Kong 100 fx & ik
% BRAA REER/BE
Walker Shop Footwear Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding and 500,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
Limited company retailing of footwear in ~ shares
Rl YN Hong Kong 500,000,000 f% & i@ i%
REERRTEER/
EE
Walker Shop International The PRC, wholly foreign- Retailing of footwear in ~ US$200,000 100% 100%
Trading (Shanghai) owned enterprise, limited the PRC 200,000 % T
Company Limited" liability company TEHE HE
BRREREH(LE) hEHEBERRERAR
BRAR]
Smart Sky International The PRC, wholly foreign- Trading of footwear in HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
(Beijing) Limited' owned enterprise, limited the PRC 1,000,000 7% 7T
HMABEEZES(LR)ERALA  liability company BEE#E /hHE
FE - AMNEBERERRAA
BNBEEZERAH The PRC, wholly foreign- Trading of footwear HK$1,500,000 100% 100%

owned enterprise, limited in the PRC 1,500,000 77T
liability company BEEE/F

PE - MEEELEARAA

The English names of certain companies represent the best

effort by the management of the Group in translating their
Chinese names as they do not have official English names.

As legal requirement, all companies established in the PRC
and Taiwan have adopted 31 December as their accounting
date for statutory reporting purpose. All other companies
have adopted 31 March as their financial year end date.

BIEEEETE RPBEREER AR
RIERMW12 831 HAEEZTHRHRHEE - AT
EHEMATCHMNIAIE AHMHEE
FHEH o
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFEHBEHME

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS

malEx
For the year ended 31 March
HEZ3A3HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue & 1,090,668 1,299,154 1,375,256 1,451,495 1,299,284
Cost of sales SHERAR (473,751) (616,940) (555,810) (600,476) (526,783)
Gross profit E | 616,917 682,214 819,446 851,019 772,501
Operating expenses KEE A (719,836) (909,209) (919,798) (874,917) (749,507)
Other gains/(losses), net Hivlfzs/(E18) - 3@ 10,388 (772) 1,246 4514 (611)
Other income HApb e A 7,035 12,029 7,341 12,515 12,305
Operating (loss)/profit T (FE), BN (85,496) (215,738) (91,765) (6,869) 34,688
Finance (costs)/income, net B®(BR),/ WA - FE (489) (332) (181) (439) 425
(Loss)/profit before RetFEHa(EE),/
income tax gl (85,985) (216,070) (91,946) (7,308) 35,113
Income tax expense FTiSHiF= (2,415) (13,902) (8,363) (4,258) (11,947)
(Loss)/profit for the year REEZ(FHE), BT (88,400) (229,972) (95,309) (11,566) 23,166
Attributable to: BEfL
Equity holders of the Company AR AJ#EZEE A (87,420) (227,851) (92,826) (9,713) 25,131
Non-controlling interests IR (980) (2,121) (2,483) (1,853) (1,965)
(88,400) (229,972) (95,309) (11,566) 23,166
Dividends BRE — — — — 15,589
Annual Report 2014/2015
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HEFMBEE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBMRRR
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment )% - Fi/E k& 34,942 40,386 52,064 60,520 55,625
Investment properties WEME — 3,579 1,013 1,045 1,078
Intangible assets BIVEE 2,570 4,605 45,339 64,953 69,411
Deferred income tax assets BIEPTSTHE E 6,091 9,547 19,355 19,124 17,486
Available-for-sale financial AfEHEsmERE
assets - — 39,759 42,145 52,421
Rental deposits Heke 10,995 14,781 16,336 18,850 15,462
N 54,598 72898 173,866 206,637 211,483
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 242,388 320,393 444,870 470,672 405,553
Trade receivables FEWE 55K IE 115,024 119,636 152,446 148,543 132,928
Deposits, prepayments and B EAREREMD
other receivables ElFRE 40,044 50,043 53,858 58,588 85,779
Financial assets at fair value ~ ZAF{EaI ABEZ
through profit or loss TREE — — — 22,699 39,732
Tax recoverable EEEE — — 86 86 149
Cash and cash equivalents RekieFEEE 94,939 107,044 104,179 95,552 135,927
492,395 597,116 755,439 796,140 800,068
Assets held for sale BEELEEE 5,022 — — — —
e B 597116 755,439 796,140 800,068 _
LIABILITIES a8
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables JE 8 558 (101,396) (128,095) (161,679) (156,016) (160,129)
Accruals and other payables — [EzT & F K E i fEfT
FUA (53,193) (71,854) (73,741) (72,623) (72,383)
Borrowings BE (25,040) (5,260) (5,400) (6,075) —
Obligation under finance lease &4 78 & & (106) (106) — (53) (316)
Tax payable FEfT A (1,001) (3,108) (1,793) (1,800) (2,548)
(180,736) (208,423) (242,613) (236,567) (235,376)
Netcurrentassets = ABEEFE 316,681 388,693 512,826 559,578 . 564,692
Total assets less current BEEABRRBERE
Mabilities 371,279 461591 686692 766210 776,175
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Obligation under finance lease & 18 € #IE (115) (221) — — (53)
Deferred income tax liabilities — ELFTEHEE (5,990) (5,989) (4,456) (2,940) (1,413)
... (6105  (6210)  (4456) _ (2,940) (1,466)
Net assets EEFE 365,174 455,381 682,236 763,270 774,709
EQUITY #®
Capital and reserves AR
Share capital & 62,356 62,356 62,356 62,356 62,356
Reserves ] 305,134 394,205 620,954 702,980 712,264
367,490 456,561 683,310 765,336 774,620
Non-controlling interests Pl g (2,316) (1,180) (1,074) (2,066) 89
Total equity ERAH 365,174 455,381 682,236 763,270 774,709
Walker Group Holdings Limited
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